


(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.
Yes [ x ]

No [ ]

13. Aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates: P1,110,679,032
(92,556,586,027 shares at P0.012 per share as of December 31, 2017)
14. Documents incorporated by reference:
(a) The Company’s 2017 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
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PART 1 - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Business
(a) Description of Business
(1) Business Development
The Philodrill Corporation (the “Company”) was incorporated in 1969, originally, with the
primary purpose of engaging in oil, gas and mineral exploration and development. In 1989,
realizing the need to balance the risk associated with its petroleum activities, the Company
changed its primary purpose to that of a diversified holding company while retaining petroleum
and mineral exploration and development as one of its secondary purposes. Thereafter, the
Company has maintained investments in petroleum exploration and production, financial
services, property development, mining and infrastructure development. On January 16, 2008,
stockholders representing at least two-thirds of the Company’s outstanding capital stock approved
to change the Company’s primary purpose back to petroleum exploration and development and to
relegate and include as a secondary purpose the Company’s holding company purpose clause,
which the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) approved on April 13, 2009.
With the Company’s corporate term expiring in 2019, an application for the amendment of its
Articles of Incorporation was filed, extending its corporate term for another fifty (50) years. The
SEC on January 18, 2018, approved The Philodrill Corporation’s amended Articles of
Incorporation extending its corporate term for another fifty (50) years, from and after June 25,
2019.
The Company’s active petroleum projects cover production and exploration areas in offshore
Palawan and onshore Mindoro under various Service Contracts (SC) with the Philippine
government through the Department of Energy (DOE).
In the financial services sector, the Company is a 40% shareholder of Penta Capital Investment
Corporation (PCIC), an investment house. PCIC holds equity interest in several companies such
as, Penta Capital Finance Corporation, a finance company (98.75% owned), Penta Capital
Holdings Inc. (PCHI), an investment holding company (29.54% owned), Penta Capital Realty
Corporation (100% owned) and Intra-Invest Securities, Inc. (68.47% owned). The Company also
holds a 13.21% direct equity investment in PCHI.
In the mining sector, the Company holds minor equity interests in the following companies: Atlas
Consolidated Mining & Development Corporation (ACMDC) and United Paragon Mining
Corporation.
PETROLEUM PROJECTS
I. SERVICE CONTRACT NO. 14 (Nido, Matinloc and North Matinloc)
Production Operations
The combined production from the three producing fields in 2017 totalled 125,756 barrels which
is about 7% less than the fields’ combined output of 135,513 barrels in 2016. The decrease in
production is mainly attributed to normal depletion of field reserves and the shut-in of the






remaining North Matinloc well in June due to very low flowing pressure. Overall, produced
volume fell short of the 130,000 barrels forecast for 2017.
The consortium completed a total of twelve (12) crude shipments from the three fields in 2017,
all with Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation with whom Philodrill is presently negotiating for
the renewal of the Crude Oil Purchase Agreement which expired in February 2017. As in the
previous years, service for crude shipment was provided by Global Gas & Oil Carriers, Inc. with
which the Contract for Carriage of Crude Oil with Philodrill also expired in February 2017.
Plug & Abandonment and Decommissioning Activities
Service Contract 14 has the unique distinction of being the first contract to implement permanent
plug and abandonment of offshore production wells and will probably be the first to
decommission fixed offshore installations in the country. The P&A of the Pandan-1 well in the
Matinloc Block was successfully carried out in 2014 while similar attempts on the Tara and Libro
wells in the same year failed. The SC14 B-1 consortium will resume the program in 2018,
starting with the ongoing refurbishment works on the Libro platform as part of the preparations
for the P&A of these wells.
The Nido BW well platform is also currently being refurbished. The plan is to make this a
working and manned platform again since the Nido B wells supply most of the production
volume from the Nido field. Inspection of subsea pipelines and other facilities are also
programmed or are being implemented.
Meanwhile, a Task Force had been created to prepare the SC 14 P&A and Decommissioning Plan
for the Nido, Matinloc and North Matinloc wells and facilities. A Master Plan was prepared and
submitted in November 2017 by the Task Force to the different SC 14 consortia for consideration.
The next task is for a third party to review the prepared protocol and provide general costing for
the eventual P&A and decommissioning activities in these fields.
II. SERVICE CONTRACT NO. 14 C-1 (Galoc)
Operations Review
The Galoc Field’s full year production for 2017 totalled 1.46 MM barrels which was about 22%
lower than the total output 1.68 MM barrels in 2016. The decrease in production is largely
attributed to the normal depletion of the field’s reserves even as the FPSO “Rubicon Intrepid”
registered a very high 99.97% process uptime during the year. The Galoc Field attained the 20
MM barrels milestone in January 2017, the first Philippine oilfield with the most produced oil.
Operator Galoc Production Company (GPC) and its marketing agent Vitol Asia Pte Ltd.
completed four (4) crude oil shipments in 2017 involving 1.41 MM barrels. Buyers were Thai
Oil Public Company for the January 2017 shipment while SK Energy Pte Ltd for the other 3
offtakes.
Production optimisation strategy is continuously being undertaken by GPC. Increased flow rates
from the production wells are achieved by controlling the well openings (choke sizes) without
significantly increasing the gas-to-oil ratio. The strategy resulted to being able to effectively
manage the field’s natural production decline.






Galoc Mid Area Exploration
In 2016, the Galoc Consortium voted to drill the Galoc-7 appraisal and sidetrack wells to test the
presence (or absence) and quality of the Galoc Clastic Unit reservoir in the Mid-Galoc area and
determine the type of any reservoired fluids therein. This program was presented to and accepted
by the DOE as the JV’s firm commitment for 2017. With the approval, GPC immediately
prepared for the drilling campaign, and by end-2016, all the contracts for the drilling rig, vessels,
equipment and services were already in place.
GPC carried out their 2-well drilling campaign in late-March to early May using the drillship
Deepsea Metro I owned by Golden Close Maritime Co., Ltd. The first well, Galoc-7, was
spudded on March 31, 2017 and drilled though the reservoir objective which was found to contain
hydrocarbons. The well reached a final depth of 2,373 meters measured depth (MD). GPC
followed up with Galoc-7 ST, a sidetrack from Galoc-7, on April 19, 2017. The well likewise
drilled through the prognosed hydrocarbon-charged GCU before reaching a final depth of 2,569
meters MD. The two wells encountered 7 to 12 meters of net sand, which is below the prognosed
thickness.
After an extensive review of the well results and potential tie-back scenarios, the JV in
consideration of the prevailing low crude prices decided to temporarily suspend all activities
related to a possible Phase III development and concentrate its efforts in optimizing oil
production at the Galoc Field from the current four production wells in order to sustain
profitability and prolong the field’s economic life.
Outlook
Projected production volume from the Galoc Field for 2018 is about 1.1 MM barrels. GPC has
calendared 4 shipments of 330,000 barrels per cargo, with volumes based on the 2017 Gaffney,
Cline & Associates report adjusted to take into consideration operational constraints, with 98%
process uptime.
The operator is looking to manage the field economically possibly until mid-2020s depending on
the crude oil prices and the success of the cost reduction measures that GPC is currently
implementing or will pursue. GPC will continue implementing production optimization to extend
the field life. Towards the end of 2017, the Galoc operations were completely centralized in
Manila as part of the cost reduction efforts. Also, the Galoc Joint Venture partners mandated
GPC to negotiate for a net revenue sharing arrangement with the FPSO operator ROI and if
possible, to renegotiate contracts for other support services. All these measures aim to counter
the negatives effects of the protracted downturn in the crude oil prices and reduced field
production volume.

III. SERVICE CONTRACT NO. 14 C-2 (West Linapacan)
The DOE approved in January 2017 the submitted work program and budget for the West
Linapacan Block for 2017 which focused on the re-mapping of the West Linapacan “A” Field
using the 2014 pre-stack depth migration (PSDM) seismic data. The work aimed to improve the
resource estimates and serve as basis for amending previous well design and field developments






for the field. Previously un-interpreted PSDM seismic data volume procured from DownUnder
Geosolutions (DUG) in May was used for the seismic interpretation works.
Alongside the seismic interpretation works, Philodrill reviewed several strategies to re-develop
the West Linapacan “A” field using the floating and subsea facilities of the Galoc Field. The
concept identified was to co-produce the West Linapacan oil with the Galoc oil via a 27 km subsea pipeline into the FPSO facility of the Galoc Field. This concept, as envisaged, will not only
hasten the re-development efforts of the field but will also drastically reduce the operating costs
for the planned re-development of West Linapacan “A” and existing operations at the Galoc field.
To progress the validation of the re-development concept, in a meeting in late June, the Joint
Venture approved Philodrill’s proposed supplemental work program which entails a technical
review of the West Linapacan “A” field. The work was carried out by the Perth-based RISC
Advisory Pty Ltd, an independent consultancy firm. The study aimed to provide reservoir
scenarios/models documenting recoverable reserves and production forecasts which will serve as
basis for field development plans. The technical review commenced in August after Philodrill
was granted the DOE’s approval of the supplemental work program.
The Technical Review was completed in January 2018 with results on resource estimates being
significantly lower than previous studies. Key results of the study are as follows:
•

Estimated history matched original oil in place (OOIP) volumes ranged between 47 – 90
MMstb with a best case of 72 MMstb. In contrast, NSAI had between 75 – 111 MMstb
while RMA estimated an OOIP of 132 MMstb in the Linapacan Limestone.

•

Reservoir pressure is declining and is reflected in the overall decline in well productivity;
Forward modelling used an initialized pressure of 1523 psi which is projected depleted
reservoir pressure from the initial 2610 psi.

•

Based on history matched models, the forward simulation indicates that a crestal well can
only recover 1 MMstb with a peak rate of 5,600 bopd while a redrill of the WL A-1 in the
main block of the field can only recover 0.3 MMstb at 5,000 bopd.

In the light of the lower than expected results on reserves of the technical review, Philodrill,
under the proposed 2018 Work Program and Budget, will continue to conduct other technical
studies to identify and assess remaining, viable options to re-develop the West Linapacan Field.
The efforts will also include reviewing cost-effective options for the P&A of the old West
Linapacan wells.
IV. SERVICE CONTRACT NO. 6A (Octon)
In January 2017, operator Philodrill formally submitted to the DOE the proposed 2017 Work
Program and Budget for the Octon Block which the DOE approved in February 2017. With the
DOE approval, Philodrill commenced the PSDM re-processing of the 520 sq km seismic data
volume on the northern block of the SC with DUG. The objective of the reprocessing work was
to further uplift the quality of data from the previous pre-stack time migration (PSTM) work as
input for the succeeding re-run of the Quantitative Interpretation work. The re-run of the QI






study using the PSDM data is programmed to further investigate all the identified structures and
horizons of interests in the northern portion of the block.
The seismic broadband PSDM reprocessing by DUG was carried out in April through September
with the results and deliverables received by Philodrll in early October. These have since been
loaded into the DUG mapping system. A re-run of the QI immediately commenced in September
when the reprocessed PSDM data volume became available. Due to the complexity of geology in
the area, the target completion of the QI work by end-December 2017 was delayed and pushed
back to the following year.
Upon request by the operator, the DOE extended the submission of the 2018 WP&B to January
31, 2018. This allowed the joint venture to agree on and adopt the forward activities for the block
which include remapping of the previously identified prospects using the PSDM seismic data and
integrating the results of the QI work. The proposed G&G work will be complemented by risk
and resource analysis on mapped prospects as well as preliminary well/drilling design and cost
study. Results from these activities will serve as basis to conduct scoping project activities to
assess viability of pursuing drilling and development of these prospects.
V. SERVICE CONTRACT NO. 6B (Bonita)
In February 2017, Trans-Asia Petroleum Corporation (TAPET) served notice of relinquishment
of its interest in SC 6B in favour of the other members of the Bonita consortium. Immediately,
the consortium met in early March to discuss the TAPET issue and the strategy that the Bonita JV
would like to take in consideration of the DOE’s non-response to the JV’s request to append
Cadlao Field into SC 6B. To address TAPET’s relinquishment, Philodrill circulated a draft
addendum to the current SC 6B Joint Operating Agreement (JOA), prescribing a section that will
guide the JV on withdrawal by any party from the Agreement and the Service Contract. The
proposed addendum to the JOA was eventually put aside when the partners deemed it sufficient
to accept and execute TAPET’s Notice of Relinquishment. This resulted to Philodrill gaining
additional 8.182% interest to its majority interest of 50% on the block.
During the first semester, Philodrill received an offer made by a potential European-based
Farminee. The Farminee offer is premised on the DOE approving the requested inclusion of the
Cadlao Field and its historical cost into SC 6B. A farm-in agreement was prepared and signed by
the Farminee and the Joint Venture partners in September 2017.
In a letter to Philodrill in June 2017, the DOE advised on the legal basis and requirements for the
amendment of active, operating contracts such as SC 6B and how the Cadlao field may be
appended to it. In support of the request for the inclusion of Cadlao to SC 6B, an indicative work
program, as proposed by Farminee under the FIA, was submitted to the DOE. The indicative
work program is geared towards reviving oil production from the Cadlao field which included
drilling of well(s), facilities construction and commissioning, achieving ”First Oil” before end2019 and the possible development of the East Cadlao prospect in SC 6B.
On 14 March 2018, the DOE formally approved the Joint Venture request, subject to the
execution of an Amendment to Service Contract 6B. As of time of writing, Philodrill and the
Energy Resource Development Bureau of the DOE are finalizing the amendment document






which basically defines the geographic coordinates of SC 6B with the Cadlao Block appended to
it.
VI. SERVICE CONTRACT NO. 41 (Sulu Sea)
The Sulu Sea area was first offered for bidding under the 4th Philippine Energy Contracting
Round (PECR4) in 2012 in which Philodrill and PXP Energy Corporation (formerly Philex
Petroleum Corporation) submitted a joint bid. The DOE did not award any new contract despite
several submitted bids for the Sulu Sea area at that time, with the Philodrill/PXP Energy bid
reportedly chosen based on the proposed work programs. The Sulu Sea area was not included
among the different blocks offered for bidding under the PECR5 in May 2014.
Philodrill will most likely participate and bid should the Sulu Sea area be offered in future
bidding rounds.
VII. SERVICE CONTRACT NO. 53 (Onshore Mindoro)
In early February, the DOE approved the revised 2017 work program and budget which was
submitted in December 2017 by block operator Mindoro-Palawan Oil & Gas, Inc (MPOGI). The
main revision involved the re-scheduling of the Progreso-2 drilling from the first quarter of 2017
to December 2017. MPOGI sought to delay the start of drilling due to the DOE’s late approval of
the transfer of Pitkin Petroleum’s 70% participating interest to MPOGI and the latter’s
operatorship of the block.
During the partners meeting in April, MPOGI reported that due to the lack of manpower and
technical expertise to prosecute the work commitments for the joint venture, it offered to divest as
much as 70% of its interest in exchange for reimbursement of past costs amounting to US$
500,000 and the option to match future gas sales /offtake agreement. MPOGI also offered to
transfer operatorship of the block to the partners.
Philodrill countered with the proposal to acquire 40% direct participating interest in MPOGI by
reimbursing them the prorata cost for the consideration paid by MPOGI to Pitkin of about USD
57,143 and for the potential gas-sale agreement to be undertaken as per Article 9 of the Joint
Operating Agreement and in accordance with the participating interest of each JV partner.
MPOGI declined the counter-proposal in their letter to Philodrill on June 1, 2017. In the ensuing
exchange of communication and meetings, both Philodrill and MPOGI submitted their offers and
counter-offers. At the end of the year, MPOGI has yet to provide the JV with a concrete plan to
carry-out the necessary works related to the JV’s commitments on the drilling of Progreso-2.
VIII. SERVICE CONTRACT NO. 74 (Linapacan)
In the latter part of 2016, Philodrill and PNOC-Exploration Corporation (PNOC-EC) completed
their respective tasks as part of the Linapacan Field Assessment. Philodrill completed a
preliminary seismic interpretation and resource assessment of the Linapacan A and B structures
based on vintage seismic and previous evaluation works. PNOC-EC, for their part, did a
preliminary engineering and field development study, partly based on Philodrill’s completed
work. The results of these studies were presented during the partners meeting in January 2017






and will complement the operator PXP Energy’s ongoing interpretation of the broadband seismic
data acquired by CGG in 2016.
The DOE granted a 4-month extension of Sub-Phase 2 of the service contract from August 2017
until December 2017 to give PXP ample time to complete the magnetic, gravity and seismic
interpretation. Several horizons, including the deep-seated reflector packages in the southeast of
the block have been mapped. Based on the current interpretation, PXP has yet to define any
prospects and leads due to the complex geology of the area. To address this, PXP sought for the
extension until end-December 2017 to submit the 2018 work program formalizing JV’s entry to
Sub-Phase 3 of the service contract. PXP proposed to conduct seismic interpretation of the
previously un-interpreted PSDM 3D data covering the Linapacan A and B fields, a Linapacan
engineering and economics study, and onshore Palawan geological field work as the firm work.
They also proposed to re-process and interpret the 2016 2D broadband seismic over the area as
contingent program,
IX. SWAN BLOCK (Deepwater Northwest Palawan)
Philodrill continued to wait for PNOC-EC to decide on the offer to acquire participating interests
in Philodrill’s contract areas for a potential interest swap in their Service Contracts which now
cover the former SWAN Block. For the past few years, PNOC-EC had been working for the
repeal or amendment of Executive Order 556 issued by the Office of the President of the
Philippines. The said presidential directive instructs PNOC-EC to forge partnership with other
entities through the normal farmin/farmout process, but only through a strict bidding process.
Additional information required by Item 1 (a) is also contained in Note 10 to the Company’s 2017
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements.
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
The Company’s associates are PCIC, PCHI and ACMDC, where the Company has 40%, 13.21%
and 0.93% equity interest, respectively. In December 2015, the Company entered into a Joint
Voting Agreement with Alakor Corporation, National Book Store, Inc. and Anglo Philippine
Holdings Corporation, collectively known as the Ramos Group, to jointly vote their shares in
ACMDC in all matters affecting their rights as stockholders effective January 1, 2015. As of
December 31, 2017, the combined interest of the parties to the agreement represents 43.41%
interest in ACMDC.
PCIC posted a total comprehensive income of P80.0 million in 2017, 45% higher than the 2016
comprehensive income of P55.0 million. Gross revenues amounted to P206.1 million in 2017 as
compared to P142.3 million in 2016.
PCHI’s net income decreased to P22.2 million in 2017 from P88.9 million in 2016. Gross
revenues decreased to P85.9 million in 2017 as compared to P153.1 million in 2016.
ACMDC’s comprehensive loss amounted to P1.9 billion in 2017, as compared to comprehensive
income of P189.9 million in 2016. Gross revenues amounted to P11.07 billion in 2017 and P10.9
billion in 2016.






Additional information is also contained in Note 8 to the Company’s 2017 Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements.
The Company has no direct equity interest in Penta Capital Finance Corporation and as such, no
disclosure on its business development was made.
No bankruptcy, receivership or similar proceeding has been filed by or against the Company
during the last three (3) years.
No material reclassification, merger, consolidation, or purchase/sale of a significant amount of
assets not in the ordinary course of business has been undertaken by the Company during the last
three (3) years.
(2) Business of Issuer
(a) Description of Registrant
(1) Principal products or services and their markets -The Company and other participants
(collectively referred to as “Contractor”), entered into several SCs with the Philippine
government through the DOE, for the exploration, development and exploitation of the
contract areas situated mostly in offshore Palawan where oil discoveries have been
made. The aforementioned SCs provide for certain minimum work expenditure
obligations and the drilling of a specified number of wells and are covered by operating
agreements which set forth the participating interests, rights and obligations of the
contractor.
The Company’s share in the jointly controlled assets of the SCs is included under the
“Wells, platforms and other facilities” and “Deferred oil exploration costs” accounts in
the statements of financial position. The Company follows full cost method of
accounting for all exploration costs relating to each SC. These costs are deferred pending
determination of whether the contract area contains oil and gas in commercial quantities.
The exploration costs relating to the SC area where oil and gas in commercial quantities
are discovered are subsequently capitalized as “Wells, platforms and other facilities”
shown under “Property and equipment” account in the statement of financial position
upon commercial production. When the SC is permanently abandoned or the Company
has withdrawn from the consortium, the related deferred oil exploration costs are writtenoff. Reserves are estimated by reference to available reservoir and well information,
including production and pressure trends for producing reservoirs.
All proven reserve estimates are subject to revision, either upward or downward, based
on new information, such as from development drilling and production activities or from
changes in economic factors, including product prices, contract terms or development
plans. As a field goes into production, the amount of proven reserves will be subject to
future revision once additional information becomes available. As those fields are further
developed, new information may lead to revisions. Additional information required by
Item 1 (2) (a) is also contained on Notes 7 and 10 to the Company’s 2016 Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements. The Company’s present revenues and production and
related expenses are from certain areas of SC 14 particularly Nido, Matinloc, North
Matinloc and Galoc. The crude oil revenues from these oilfields contributed about 91.1%
of the total gross revenues.






Information as to production volume follows (in barrels):
2017
Nido
Matinloc
North Matinloc
Galoc (net)
Total

2016

56,164
67,490
2,102
1,438,280
1,564,036

2015

53,646
72,745
9,122
1,846,954
1,982,467

71,147
70,716
8,362
2,212,267
2,362,492

The Company also generates revenues from its equity investments by way of dividends
received from, and/or equitizable share in the earnings of investee companies. Equitized
earnings from affiliates constituted about 3.7% of the total gross revenues.
Investee Companies. The Company is a 40% shareholder of PCIC, an investment house.
Aside from investment banking and financial advisory services, PCIC also specializes in
providing securitization services, short-term bridge financing facilities and assistance in
raising working capital funds.
The Company also has investment in PCHI with investment holdings in real estate,
financial and securities transactions. The Company has a 13.21% ownership in PCHI.
PCIC also has 29.54% ownership interest in PCHI, making the Company’s effective
ownership in PCHI at 25.03%.
The Company has 0.93% minor equity interest in ACMDC, as of December 31, 2017,
together with the other companies in the Ramos Group, the combined interest represents
43.41% in ACMDC.
ACMDC is engaged in metallic mineral and mining exploration, and currently produces
copper concentrate (with gold and silver), magnetite iron ore concentrate and laterite
nickel.
(2) Percentage of sales or revenues and net income contributed by foreign sales - SC14C-1
crude oil were sold to foreign companies, the following are the percentages contributed
by foreign sales:
2017
Gross petroleum revenue
Net operating income

67%
409%

2016
64%
296%

2015
71%
110%

(3) Distribution Method of the Products or Service - As the lead operator of the SC14 Blocks
A, B and B-1 consortium, the Company is in-charge of the sale, transfer and disposition
of the oil produced from the Nido, Matinloc and North Matinloc oilfields. The oil
produced and saved from these areas was sold to Pilipinas Shell. The proceeds from the
sale of crude oil were distributed by the operator to the different consortium members in
accordance with their respective participating interests. For SC14C-1 consortium, the
operator, GPC sold the crude oil to several foreign firms.
(4) Status of any new product or service - There are NO new products or services.






(5) Competition - Crude oil production from SC14 A, B & B-1 (Nido, Matinloc and North
Matinloc) were all sold to Pilipinas Shell. The Company’s crude sales agreement with
Pilipinas Shell remained in effect for 2017. For SC14 C-1, the crude oil production was
sold to several foreign firms, namely, SK Energy Pte. Ltd., and ThaiOil Public Co. Vitol
Asia Pte., Ltd. continued to act as a marketing agent for the SC14C-1 consortium.
Competition for market of petroleum does not have a significant bearing in the operations
of the Company.
In the upstream local industry, group of companies form consortiums to explore certain
areas. The DOE awards SCs to technically and financially capable companies based on
competitive bidding. The Company competes in the acquisition of exploration rights
with foreign firms and local exploration companies namely, PNOC-EC, Oriental
Petroleum and Minerals Corporation, PetroEnergy Resources Corporation, Nido
Production (Galoc) Pty. Ltd., Forum Energy Phils. Corporation. Competition in the
acquisition of exploration rights also gives opportunities for partnership between local
and foreign companies.
The Company is a recognized leader in the local petroleum industry. The Company is
financially strong and the technical expertise of its staff is recognized by the DOE.
The Company remains a strong player in the local exploration and production industry.
(6) Sources and availability of raw materials - Not applicable
(7) Dependence on One or a Few Major Customers and Identification of Such a) Petroleum Revenue - production from Galoc which is 67% of the total gross revenues
were sold to several foreign firms namely, SK Energy Pte. Ltd., ThaiOil Public Co.,
Singapore Petroleum Company and Chevron Singapore. Vitol Asia Pte., Ltd.
continued to act as a marketing agent for the SC14C-1 consortium. While production
from Nido, Matinloc and North Matinloc which is 24% of the total gross revenues
were all sold to Pilipinas Shell under a crude oil sales agreement.
b) Investment Income - the Company’s equity share in associates’ earnings is dependent
on the financial performance of its investee company, PCIC, PCHI and ACMDC.
(8) Transactions with and/or Dependence on Related Parties - the information required is
contained on Note 16 to the Company’s 2017 Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements.
(9) Patents, Trademarks, Licenses, Franchises, Concessions, Royalty Agreements, or Labor
Contracts, including Duration- The Company is a member of the following valid and
subsisting Petroleum SCs, either in its capacity as Operator or Consortium Member:
Service Contract No.
6A Octon Block
6B Bonita Block
14A Nido Block
14B Matinloc Block



Location
NorthWest Palawan
NorthWest Palawan
NorthWest Palawan
NorthWest Palawan

Expiry
February 2024
February 2024
December 2025
December 2025

Company’s Capacity
(as of December 31, 2017)
Operator
Operator
Operator
Operator




14B-1 North Matinloc
14 Tara Block
14C-1 Galoc Block
14C-2 West Linapacan
14D Retention Block
53 Onshore Mindoro
74 Linapacan

NorthWest Palawan
NorthWest Palawan
NorthWest Palawan
NorthWest Palawan
NorthWest Palawan
Mindoro
NorthWest Palawan

December 2025
December 2025
December 2025
December 2025
December 2025
July 2055
August 2063

Operator
Consortium Member
Consortium Member
Operator
Operator
Consortium Member
Consortium Member

(10) Government Approvals – The Company is a participant in various SCs with the
Philippine government through the DOE which provide for certain minimum work
expenditure obligations and drilling of a specified number of wells and are covered by
operating agreements which set forth the participating interests, rights and obligations of
the Contractor.
(11) Effect of Existing or Probable Governmental Regulations on the Business - Existing
government regulations do not adversely affect the business of the Company. We are not
aware of any probable government regulation that may adversely affect the business of
the Company and its subsidiary.
(12) Estimate of Amount Spent for Research and Development Activities - The Company
incurs expenses in the oil exploration projects wherein the Company is a participant,
expense on the evaluation and studies on these projects form part of deferred costs.
The following are the expenses incurred for the last three (3) years:
Year
2017
2016
2015

Amount
P15.2M
P46.5M
P32.1M

(13) Costs and Effects of Compliance with Environmental Laws - Compliance with the
environmental laws has not, and is not anticipated to adversely affect the businesses and
financial condition of the Company. Petroleum service contractors are mandated to
comply with all environmental laws in phases of exploration and production operations.
The Company did not directly incur any expenses for such activities during the last three
(3) years. Any costs of compliance with environmental laws will either be charged as
ordinary operating expense or capitalized as part of project investment.
(14) Employees - As at December 31, 2017, the Company had 28 employees.
Type of employee
Executive Officers Administrative
AVP, Managers Technical/Operations
Rank and File - Clerical
Total

Finance/
Administration
Legal/Stocks

Exploration/
Technical
1

3

3
6
10

3
12
18

The present employees are not subject to Collective Bargaining Agreement. For the past
three (3) years, there had not been any strike threat. All regular officers and employees






are entitled to supplemental benefits as provided under the applicable labor laws and
existing Company’s schedule of benefits (i.e. leaves, medical and other cash aid
programs, bonuses, retirement, life/hospitalization insurances and others).
The Company will continue to provide such benefits within the ensuing twelve (12)
months. The Company does not anticipate hiring additional personnel within the ensuing
twelve (12) months.
(15) Major risk/s involved in each of the business of the company and subsidiaries Information required by this Item is contained in Note 22 to the Company’s 2017
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements. Note 22 discussed the risks factors namely:
credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk which includes foreign currency risk and equity
price risk. In addition we would like to disclose the following risks:
Commodity price risk – The Company’s petroleum revenues are based on
international commodity quotations (i.e. primarily on the average Dubai oil prices)
over which the Company has no significant influence or control. This exposes the
Company’s results of operations to commodity price volatilities that may
significantly impact its cash inflows. However, the Company is exerting its efforts in
reducing operating costs in order to counteract any decrease in commodity price.
Production risk - The Company’s crude oil production from the Galoc, Nido,
Matinloc and North Matinloc fields may experience decline that are due to normal
reserve depletion, production shutdown, adverse weather condition and problems
relating to availability of vessels. In the Galoc field, the SC14C-1 consortium
upgraded the mooring and riser system (M&RS) of the FPSO which involved the
installation of a revolving external turret on the bow of the FPSO. The installed turret
practically eliminated the need for the risky and costly disconnection of the M&RS
during adverse weather conditions and its subsequent reconnection which in the past
had resulted in expensive damage and prolonged operating downtimes. Because of
the improved M&RS system, the Galoc operations attained close to 100% process
uptime in 2017.
(b) Additional Requirements as to Certain Issues or Issuers
(a) Debt issues - Not applicable
(b) Investment Company Securities - Not applicable
(c) Mining and Oil Companies - In line with its primary business purpose, the Company
remains a participant in certain petroleum exploration projects. The amount of the
Company’s interests in these contracts and a brief description of the areas and status of
works performed therein are provided in Item 1 (a) above under the heading “Petroleum
Projects”.
Item 2. Properties
The information required by Item 2 is contained in Notes 6 and 7 to the Company’s
2017 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements.






As a participant in SC No.14, the Company reflects its proportionate share in the cost of the
production facilities of the Nido, Matinloc, North Matinloc, Galoc and West Linapacan oilfields
under the “Wells, platforms and other facilities” account. These production facilities are located
in the offshore Palawan area, while the office condominium unit, furnitures, and other equipments
are located at 125 Pioneer Street, Mandaluyong City. These properties are in good condition.
The Company does not intend to make any substantial property acquisition in the next twelve
(12) months.
The Company’s exploration properties, which are presented as deferred oil exploration and
development costs in the audited consolidated financial statements are presented below:
The
Company’s
Interest (%)
51.650

Expiry
Date

Location

Sep 01,
1973

Feb 28,
2024

Northwest
Palawan

Exploration

The
Company

Sep 01,
1973

Feb 28,
2024

Northwest
Palawan

Exploration

MindoroPalawan
Oil&Gas,
Inc.
PXP
Energy

July 08,
2005

July 08,
2014

Mindoro

Exploration

Sep 03,
2013

Aug 03,
2063

Northwest
Palawan

Exploration

SC41 (Sulu
**
Sulu Sea
Sea)
Northwest
Swan
***
Palawan
Block (NW
Palawan)
Unified
*As at December 31, 2017, the transfer between PPC and the company is still pending approval by the DOE.
**Exclusion of the area offered under PECR5 as a region covered by the contemplated Bangsamoro Basic Law
***Ongoing negotiations with PNOC-EC

For bidding
application
Ongoing
negotiations
with PNOCEC

SC No.
SC6A
(Octon)

SC6B
(Bonita)

21.875*

SC53
(Onshore
Mindoro)

22.000

SC74
(Linapacan)

25.000

Partners
PetroEnergy Resources Corp.
Anglo Phil. Holdings Corp.
Phinma Petroleum &
Geothermal, Inc.
Forum Energy Phils.Corp.
PXP Energy Corp.
Alcorn Petroleum & Minerals
Oriental Pet.& Minerals Corp
Nido Petroleum Phils. Pty
Forum Energy Phils. Corp.
Alcorn Gold Resources Corp
Mindoro-Palawan Oil & Gas,
Inc.
Anglo Phil. Holdings Corp.
Basic Cons. Mining Corp
PXP Energy Corp.
PNOC-EC

Operator
/Contractor

Issue Date

The
Company

Status

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
That as of this date, the claim for special retirement pay filed by Mr. Francisco A. Navarro,
former President of the Company, with the National Labor Relations Commission on February
13, 2017 is still pending. On August 14, 2017, Labor Arbiter Renaldo O. Hernandez issued a
Decision dismissing the claim against the Company for utter lack of merit (NLRC Case No.
NCR-02-02562-17). Mr. Francisco A. Navarro filed on September 19, 2017, a Memorandum of
Appeal on the Decision of Labor Arbiter Renaldo O. Hernandez. The same was resolved by the
Fourth Division of the NLRC (LAC No. 10-003221-17) in favor of the complainant, ordering
Philodrill to pay Mr. Navarro his special retirement pay in the amount of P17,839,000.00
The Philodrill Corporation has filed a Motion for Reconsideration (MR) on the Decision
of the Fourth Division of the NLRC.






Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the
fiscal year covered by this report.

PART II - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholders Matters
(a) Market Price of and Dividends on Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder
Matters
(1) Market Information
The Company’s shares are listed and traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). The high
and low sales price of the Company’s shares for each quarter during the last two (2) years
2017 and 2016 and the first quarter of the current year 2018, expressed in Philippine Peso, are as
follows:
Stock Prices:

High
0.0130

Low
0.0110

First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

0.0150
0.0140
0.0130
0.0120

0.0120
0.0120
0.0110
0.0110

First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

0.0130
0.0140
0.0130
0.0130

0.0096
0.0120
0.0110
0.0120

2018

First Quarter

2017

2016

(2) Holders
There were 8,612 shareholders of record as of December 31, 2017. Common shares outstanding
as of December 31, 2017 totaled 191,868,805,358 shares.
The Company offered to all its shareholders the right to subscribe to one (1) offer share for every
four (4) common shares held as of record date of October 16, 2008. In February 2008, the
Company filed its application for the listing and trading of the offer shares with the PSE and the
PSE approved the application on September 24, 2008. On May 26, 2008, the Company filed a
Registration Statement covering the offer shares with the SEC and it was approved by the SEC on
September 18, 2008. Additional information required is also contained in Note 14 to the
Company’s 2017 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements.






Top 20 stockholders as of December 31, 2017:
NAME
1. PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION FILIPINO
2. PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION NON FILIPINO
3. ALSONS CONSOLIDATED RESOURCES, INC.
4. MARGARET S. CHUA CHIACO
5. TRAFALGAR HOLDINGS PHILS., INC.
6. ALBERTO MENDOZA &/OR JEANIE MENDOZA
7. CHRISTINE C. CHUA
8. RCBC TA# 32-314-4
9. PHIL. REMNANTS CO., INC.
10. AYALA CORPORATION
11. CARMENCITA O. REYES
12. INDEPENDENT REALTY CORPORATION
13. ANSELMO C. ROQUE
14. PAULINO G. PE
15. ANSALDO GODINEZ & CO., INC.
16. J.A. GONZALEZ
17. ANGLO PHIL. OIL & MINING DEV CORP.
18. LUCIO W. YAN &/OR CLARA Y. YAN
19. PACIFIC RIM EXPORT & HOLDINGS CORP.
20. BRISOT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORP.

NO. OF SHARES
HELD
174,324,659,506
1,355,275,477
566,720,000
530,000,000
360,993,600
317,910,514
254,097,005
190,900,000
188,247,468
188,068,125
176,415,750
165,807,000
150,000,000
135,490,200
112,188,084
110,400,000
108,936,264
107,918,500
103,335,072
92,279,800

% TO TOTAL
90.86
0.71
0.30
0.28
0.19
0.17
0.13
0.10
0.10
0.10
0.09
0.09
0.08
0.07
0.06
0.06
0.06
0.06
0.05
0.05

(3) Dividends
For the years 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Board of Directors approved the declaration of the
following cash dividends:
Cash Dividend
2017- none
2016-CD030
2015-CD029

Amount
N/A
P0.00025/share
P0.00039053/share

Declared on
N/A
Sept 21, 2016
Oct 21, 2015

Record Date
N/A
Oct 5, 2016
Nov 4, 2015

Payment Date
N/A
Nov 2, 2016
Dec 1, 2015

The Company’s ability to declare and pay dividends is subject to the availability of funds and
balance of the Retained Earnings.
(4) Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
NO unregistered securities were sold during the past three (3) years. All of the Company’s issued
and outstanding shares of stock are duly registered in accordance with the provisions of the
Securities Regulation Code.
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

Securities Sold - not applicable; NO securities were sold
Underwriters and Other Purchases - not applicable; NO securities were sold
Consideration - not applicable; NO securities were sold
Exemption from Registration Claimed - not applicable; NO securities were sold

Item 6. Management’s Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation.
(a) Management’s Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation






Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for Years 2015 to 2017
(In thousands of Pesos)

Income Statement
Petroleum Revenues
Operating Income (Loss)
Net Income (Loss)
Assets
Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Total Assets
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Stockholders’ Equity
Earnings Per Share

As at 31 Dec 2017

As at 31 Dec 2016

As at 31 Dec 2015

388,202
(18,332)
(6,367)

358,688
21,912
29,119

535,637
141,801
114,710

1,065,608
2,575,512
3,641,120

1,110,145
2,519,949
3,630,377

1,130,158
2,485,286
3,615,444

46,778
29,002
3,565,340
-

40,254
24,584
3,565,255
P0.0002

66,993
6,995
3,541,456
P0.0006

(1) Plan of Operation
(A) The Company expects to be able to satisfy its working capital requirements for the next
twelve (12) months. Should the Company’s cash position be not sufficient to meet
current requirements, the Company may consider:
Issuing subscriptions call on the balance of the Subscriptions Receivable as of December
31, 2017; collecting a portion of Accounts Receivables as of December 31, 2017; Selling
a portion of its existing investments and/or assets; and or Generating cash from loans and
advances.
(B) The Company continues to consider farm-in proposals from local and foreign oil
companies which have offered to undertake additional exploration/development work and
implement production enhancement measures at no cost to the Filipino companies in
exchange for equity in the projects that they will be involved in.
(C) The Company does not expect to make any significant purchase or sale of any plant and
equipment within the next twelve (12) months.
(D) The Company does not expect any significant change in the number of its employees in
the next twelve (12) months.

(2) Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Financial highlights for the years 2017, 2016 and 2015 are presented below:
(in thousands of pesos)
Petroleum Revenues
Investment Income
Interest Income



2017
388,202
15,781
19,319

2016
358,688
14,182
19,609

2015
535,637
24,227
27,790




Net Income (Loss)
Total Assets
Net Worth
Issued & Subscribed Capital

(6,367)
3,641,120
3,565,340
1,918,688

29,119
3,630,093
3,565,255
1,918,688

114,710
3,615,444
3,541,456
1,918,688

The key performance indicators of the Company are as follows:
Dec. 31, 2017

Dec. 31, 2016

Dec. 31, 2015

Current Ratio
Current Assets
Current Liabilities

22.78:1
1,065,607,826
46,778,289

27.58:1
1,110,144,826
40,254,223

16.87:1
1,130,158,472
66,993,215

Debt to Equity Ratio
Total Liabilities
Stockholders Equity

0.02:1
75,780,539
3,565,339,915

0.02:1
64,838,163
3,565,255,174

0.02:1
73,988,132
3,541,456,389

Equity to Debt Ratio
Stockholders Equity
Total Liabilities

47.05:1
3,565,339,915
75,780,539

54.99:1
3,565,255,174
64,838,163

47.87:1
3,541,456,389
73,988,132

Book Value per Share
Stockholders Equity
Outstanding shares

0.01858
3,565,339,915
191,868,805,358

0.01858
3,565,255,174
191,868,805,358

0.01846
3,541,456,389
191,868,805,358

Earnings per Share
Net Income (Loss)
Weighted Average shares
outstanding

(6,366,746)
191,868,805,358

0.0002
29,119,304
191,868,805,358

0.0006
114,710,464
191,868,805,358

Current Ratio is 22.78:1 as of December 31, 2017; 27.58:1 as of December 31, 2016; and 16.87:1
as of December 31, 2015. As of December 31, 2017, December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015,
current assets exceeded the current liabilities by P1.019 billion, P1.070 billion and P1.063 billion,
respectively. However, a portion of the “Investments” account in the statements of financial
position consists mainly of shares of stock which are listed with the PSE and which could be sold
to meet the Company’s obligations as might be called for by future circumstances. These shares
of stock have an aggregate market value of P47.6 million as of December 31, 2017, P60.3 million
as of December 31, 2016 and P52.7 million as of December 31, 2015. If these shares would be
considered part of Current Assets, the recomputed current ratio would be 23.80:1 as of December
31, 2017; 29.08:1 as of December 31, 2016; and 17.66:1 as of December 31, 2015.
The Company has a wholly-owned subsidiary, Philodrill Power Corporation (PPC) (formerly
Phoenix Gas & Oil Exploration Co., Inc.). The Company acquired 100% of PPC’s capital stock in
May 2007. Since PPC has NO operations, disclosure on performance indicators are as follows:
Current Ratio
Current Assets
Current Liabilities
Debt to Equity Ratio



December 31, 2017
223.7:1
8,768,609
39,200
0.0045:1




Total Liabilities
Stockholders’ Equity
Equity to Debt Ratio
Stockholders’ Equity
Total Liabilities
Book Value per Share
Stockholders’ Equity
Average shares outstanding
Income per Share
Net Income (Loss)
Average shares outstanding

39,200
8,729,409
222.69:1
8,729,409
39,200
0.0007
8,729,409
12,505,000,000
-0(112,886)
12,505,000,000

(i)

Trends, events or uncertainties that have or are reasonably likely to have a material
impact on the Company’s short-term or long-term liquidity, the information required
by this item is contained in Note 22 to the Company’s 2017 Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements.

(ii)

The Company’s internal source of liquidity comes from revenues generated from
operations. The Company’s external sources of liquidity come from stock
subscriptions, loans and advances.

(iii)

The Company is expected to contribute its share in the exploration and development
expenditures in the SCs. However, most of the funding for such expenditures is
expected to be provided by operations, collection of subscriptions and other
receivables, loans/financing from banks and potential farminees to these projects.

(iv)

Trends, events or uncertainties that have had or reasonably expected to have a
material impact on the revenues or income from continuing operations, the
information required by this item is contained in Notes 10 and 22 to the Company’s
2017 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements.

(v)

There have been no material changes from period to period in one or more line items
of the Company’s financial statements, except those discussed below:
a) Total assets increased from P3.62 billion as of year-end 2015 to P3.63 billion as
of year-end 2016. From the December 31, 2016 balance, total assets increased by
P11.0 million to its December 31, 2017 balance of P3.641 billion.



-

Cash account increased by P85.1 million from P634.9 million as of
December 31, 2015 to P719.9 million as of December 31, 2016 mainly
due to the collection of the Company’s share in Galoc revenues. From its
December 31, 2016 balance to December 31, 2017 balance of P634.4
million, a decrease of P85.5 million was reflected mainly due to the
payment of the Company’s share in Galoc-7 drilling costs.

-

Receivables account decreased by P143.9 million from P476.8 million as
of December 31, 2015 to P332.9 million as of December 31, 2016.
Receivables increased by P24.7 million from its December 31, 2016




balance to December 31, 2017 balance of P357.6 million due to
additional advances made to related companies.



-

Crude oil inventory increased by P37.7 million from P17.0 million as of
December 31, 2015 to P54.7 million for the Company’s share in
inventory for the SC14 Galoc, Nido, Matinloc and North Matinloc crude.
From its year-end 2016 balance to year-end 2017 balance of P71.2
million, an increase of P16.5 million was reflected due to higher level of
crude oil in storage.

-

Other current assets increased from its December 31, 2015 balance of
P1.4 million to December 31, 2016 balance of P2.6 million. From its
year-end 2016 balance to year-end 2017 balance of P2.5 million, a
decrease of P0.13 million was reflected, due to lower level of
prepayments as of year-end.

-

Property and equipment decreased by P61.8 million from its December
31, 2015 balance of P702.5 million to December 31, 2016 balance of
P640.7 million due to depletion expense booked during the period. From
its year-end 2016 balance to year-end 2017 balance of P642.0 million, a
net increase of P1.3 million was reflected. The net increase was due to
the booking of Galoc 7 drilling costs, additional costs to other projects
and other capital expenditures totaling to P94.0 million, net of depletion
and depreciation expenses of P92.7 million.

-

Investments in associates increased by P36.1 million from the year-end
2015 balance of P726.9 million to year-end 2016 balance of P762.9
million. While the year-end 2016 balance increased by P21.9 million to
year-end 2017 balance of P784.9 million due the equity share in
associates’ earnings, adjustment in the other comprehensive income of
associates net of cash dividend booked during the period. Additional
information is also contained in Note 8 of the Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements for 2017.

-

Available-for-sale (AFS) investments increased by P8.0 million from its
year-end 2015 balance of P54.6 million to year-end 2016 balance of
P62.6 million. While for year-end 2016 to year-end 2017 balance of
P51.0 million, a decrease of P11.6 million was reflected due to the
decline in market value of investments.

-

Deferred oil exploration costs increased by P46.5 million from its yearend 2015 balance of P981.8 million to year-end 2016 balance of
P1,028.3 million. While for year-end 2016 to year-end 2017 balance of
P1,043.5 million, an increase of P15.2 million was also reflected. The
increases were mainly due to the additional costs incurred for the various
petroleum exploration projects.

-

-




Deferred tax asset (DTA) increased from its year-end 2015 balance of
P8.5 million to P14.4 million as of year-end 2016. By year-end 2017,
additional adjustment on recognized DTA was booked increasing the
balance to P28.2 million.
Other non-current assets slightly increased from its year-end 2015 to
year-end 2016 balance of P11.1 million. The year-end 2016 balance
increased by P14.9 million to year-end 2017 balance of P26.0 million
due to the additional other deferred charges booked.

b) Total liabilities decreased from its balance of P74.0 million in 2015 to P64.8
million balance in 2016. From the December 31, 2016 balance, total liabilities
increased by P10.9 million to its December 31, 2017 balance of P75.8 million.



-

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities decreased by P11.0 million
from its year-end 2015 balance of P19.7 million to year-end 2016
balance of P8.7 million due to the payment of accrued expenses during
the period. Accrued liabilities increased by P4.4 million from its yearend 2016 balance to P13.1 million as of December 31, 2017 due to the
booking of additional accounts payable with partners during the period.
Additional information is also contained in Note 12 of the Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements for 2017.

-

Income tax payable decreased by P17.4 million from its year-end 2015
balance of nil to year-end 2016. For year-end 2016 balance to year-end
2017 balance of P0.34 million, the increase was due to income tax
liability accrued as of end of period.

-

Dividends payable increased from its year-end 2015 balance of P29.9
million to year-end 2016 balance of P31.5 million. For year-end 2016
balance to year-end 2017 balance of P33.3 million, an increase of P1.7
million was reflected due to additional unclaimed cash dividends.

-

For 2016, full provision was made for the future cost of
decommissioning Galoc oilfield, the company’s estimated share in
decommissioning liability amounted to P21.9 million as of December 31,
2016. From its year-end 2016 balance to 2017 year-end balance of P24.2
million, an increase of P2.2 million was reflected to book the adjustment
on the revaluation of the liability. In relation to this decommissioning
liability, a decommissioning fund equivalent to its current contribution to
settle its share in the decommissioning costs of Galoc oilfield is also
established and is reflected under “Property and equipment” account.
Additional information is also contained in Note 13 of the Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements for 2017.

-

Retirement benefit liability decreased by P4.3 million from its year-end
2015 balance of P7.0 million to year-end 2016 balance of P2.6 million.
From its year-end 2016 balance to year-end 2017 balance of P4.8




million, an increase of P2.2 million was reflected due to the adjustment
in the recognized retirement benefit liability as of end of the period.
c) Stockholders’ equity increased by P23.8 million from its year-end 2015 balance
of P3.54 billion to year-end 2016 balance of P3.56 billion. While for year-end
2016 to year-end 2017, the stockholders’ equity slightly increased by P0.08
million.
-

Issued capital stock balance remained at P1.568 billion for the yearsended 2015, 2016 and 2017.

-

Subscribed capital stock and subscriptions receivable balances also
remained at P350.7 million for the years-ended 2015, 2016 and 2017.

-

The unrealized loss on the decline in value of AFS financial assets
decreased by 8.0 million from year-end 2015 balance of P24.3 million to
year-end 2016 balance of P16.3 million. While from its year-end 2016
balance to year-end 2017 balance of P30.3 million, an increase of P14.0
million was reflected due to the additional adjustment in the valuation
allowance. Additional information is also contained in Note 9 of the
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for 2017.

-

Retained Earnings from year-end 2015 balance of P1.83 billion to yearend 2016 balance of P1.82 billion, reflected a net decrease of P12.1
million due to the net income booked (P29.1 million), remeasurement of
retirement obligation (P6.8 million) and cash dividend declared (P48.0
million) during the period. While for year-end 2016 to year-end 2017
balance of P1.81 billion, the net decrease of P5.4 million was due to the
net loss booked (P6.4 million) and remeasurement of retirement
obligation (P1.0 million) during the period.

d) Petroleum revenues in 2017 totaled P388.2 million as compared to P358.7
million in 2016 and P535.6 million in 2015. For the year 2017, the increase in
revenues was mainly brought about by the increase in average prices. Production
decreased by 21% from its 2016 level of 1.98 million barrels to 1.56 million
barrels in 2017. Combined average prices for 2017 and 2016 were US$57.14 and
US$45.68, respectively. For 2015, total production volume was 2.3 million
barrels and average price per barrel was US$50.85.
Equity in net earnings of associates amounted to P15.8 million in 2017 and P14.2
million in 2016. The net increase of P1.6 million from year-end 2016 to year-end
2017 balance was due to higher level of income of PCIC, offset by equity share
in ACMDC’s loss. For 2015, equity in net earnings of associates amounted to
P24.2 million.
Interest income totaled to P19.3 million in 2017, P19.6 million in 2016 and P27.8
million in 2015.






Foreign exchange gains amounted to P2.6 million in 2017, P35.5 million for
2016 and P28.4 million for 2015.
e) Total costs and expenses totaled to P444.3 million in 2017, P406.0 million in
2016 and P476.5 million in 2015.
Share in production and depletion costs amounted to P381.0 million in 2017,
P355.2 million in 2016 and P406.4 million in 2015.
General and administrative expenses totaled to P59.7 million in 2017, P50.6
million in 2016 and P62.2 million in 2015.
Current provision for income taxes amounted to P2.3 million in 2017, P1.6
million in 2016 and P20.4 million for 2015. Recognition of deferred tax asset
resulted to benefit from income tax amounting to P14.3 million in 2017 and P8.8
million in 2016. While for the year 2015, deferred tax liability was recognized
amounting to P6.7 million.
(vi)

There have been NO seasonal aspects that had material effect on the financial
condition or results of operations of the Company.

(vii)

There are NO events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is
material to the Company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

(viii)

There are NO material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations
(including contingent obligations), and other relationships of the Company with
unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting period, the
information required by this item is contained in Note 25 to the Company’s 2017
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements.

(3) Interim Periods
No interim financial statements are included in this report.

Item 7. Financial Statements
The 2017 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company is incorporated herein by
reference. The schedules listed in the accompanying Index to Supplementary Schedules are filed
as part of this Form 17-A.
Item 8. Information on Independent Accountant and other Related Matters
Information on Independent Accountant. The accounting firm of SyCip Gorres Velayo &
Company (SGV) with address at 6760 Ayala Avenue, Makati City was appointed as the external
auditor of the Company in the 2015, 2016 and 2017 annual stockholders’ meetings.






External Audit Fees and Services. The fees of the external auditor in the past three (3) years are
as follows:
Year
2017
2016
2015

Audit & Audit Related Fees
P1,030,000
P995,000
P963,050

Tax Fees

Other Fees
-0-0-0-

-0-0-0-

For the past three (3) years, the Company has engaged the services of SGV for the audit of the
annual consolidated financial statements in connection with statutory and regulatory filings for
years 2017, 2016 and 2015. The amounts under the caption “Audit and Audit Related Fees” for
the years 2017, 2016 and 2015 pertain to these services.
The Audit Committee has an existing policy, which prohibits the Company from engaging the
independent accountant to provide services that may adversely impact their independence,
including those expressly prohibited by SEC regulations.
Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
There have been NO changes in and disagreements with accountants on any matter of accounting
principles or practices, financial statement disclosures, or auditing scope or procedure.
The Company did NOT engage any new independent accountant, as either principal accountant to
audit the Company’s consolidated financial statements or as an independent accountant on whom
the principal accountant has expressed or is expected to express reliance in its report regarding a
significant subsidiary, during the two (2) most recent fiscal years or any subsequent interim
period.
NO independent accountant engaged by the Company as principal accountant, or an independent
accountant on whom the principal accountant has expressed or is expected to express reliance on
its report regarding a significant subsidiary, has resigned, or has declined to stand for re-election
after completion of the current audit, or was dismissed.
The Audit Committee reviews and recommends to the Board and stockholders the appointment of
the external auditor and the fixing of the audit fees for the Company. For year 2018, SGV will be
recommended for appointment as external auditors during the stockholders’ meeting.

PART III - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION
Item 9. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant
(a) Directors, Executive Officers Promoters and Control Persons
(1) Identify Directors and Executive Officers
(A) Names and Ages of all Directors and Executive Officers






Name

Age

Citizenship

Position

Alfredo C. Ramos

74

Filipino

Chairman of the Board
President

Francisco A. Navarro

74

Filipino

Presentacion S. Ramos
Christopher M. Gotanco
Adrian S. Ramos
Gerard Anton S. Ramos
Alexandra Ramos-Padilla
Honorio A. Poblador III
Nicasio I. Alcantara
Reynaldo E. Nazarea

76
68
39
43
45
72
75
65

Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino

Alessandro O. Sales
Isabelita L. Matela
Dennis V. Panganiban
Adrian S. Arias

59
63
55
54

Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino

Director
President
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Director
Treasurer
VP Administration
VP Exploration & Production
AVP Finance
AVP Exploration & Production
Corporate Secretary

Period of Service
From
To
Dec 2, 1992
Present
Apr 24, 1989
Mar 31, 2014
Jan 1, 2017
Present
Mar 22, 2006
Jun 20, 2017
Apr 1, 2014
Dec 31, 2016
May 28, 1997
Present
Aug 17, 2005
Present
Jan 18, 2006
Present
Dec 16, 2015
Present
Jun 19, 2013
Present
Feb 26, 2003
Present
Feb 26, 2003
Present
Jun 21, 2017
Present
May 1, 2005
Present
May 1, 1992
Present
Mar 11, 2008
Present
Oct 1, 2009
Present
Sep 1, 2011
Present
Dec 2, 1992
Present

The Company’s Independent Directors are Messrs. Honorio A. Poblador III and
Nicasio I. Alcantara.
(B)Positions and offices that each person named above held with the Company
Mr. Alfredo C. Ramos has been the Chairman of the Board of the Company since
December 2, 1992. He also served as President of the Company from April 24,
1989 until March 31, 2014. On January 1, 2017, after the retirement of Mr.
Francisco A. Navarro, he again assumed as President of the Company.
Ms. Presentacion S. Ramos has been a Director since May 28, 1997.
Mr. Christopher M. Gotanco was elected Director on August 17, 2005.
Mr. Adrian S. Ramos was elected Director on January 18, 2006.
Mr. Gerard Anton S. Ramos was elected Director on December 16, 2015.
Ms. Maureen Alexandra Ramos-Padilla was elected Director on June 19, 2013.
Mr. Nicasio I. Alcantara has been a Director of the Company since 1991 and was
elected Independent Director on February 26, 2003. Mr. Alcantara has all the
qualifications and none of the disqualifications as an Independent Director since
his election in 2003.
Mr. Honorio A. Poblador III has been a Director of the Company since 1992 and
was elected Independent Director on February 26, 2003. Mr. Poblador possesses
all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications as Independent Director
since his election in 2003.






Mr. Reynaldo E. Nazarea was appointed Vice President for Finance in 1987. He
concurrently serves as Vice President for Administration since 1992, and as
Company Treasurer since May 1, 2005. On June 21, 2017, he was elected as
Director of the Company.
Mr. Alessandro O. Sales became the Vice President for Exploration on May 15,
2005, then subsequently Vice President for Exploration and Production
beginning March 11, 2008.
Ms. Isabelita L. Matela was appointed Asst. Vice President for Finance on
October 1, 2009. She was previously Finance Manager of the Company for 23
years prior to her assumption as AVP.
Mr. Dennis V. Panganiban was appointed Asst. Vice President for Exploration
and Production on September 1, 2011.
Atty. Adrian S. Arias has been the Company’s Corporate Secretary since
December 2, 1992.
(C) Term of Office as Director and Period of Service
The Directors of the Company are elected at the Annual Stockholders’ meeting to
hold office until the next succeeding annual meeting and until their respective
successors have been elected and qualified. Officers are appointed or elected
annually by the Board of Directors during its organizational meeting following
the Annual Meeting of Stockholders, each to hold office until the corresponding
meeting of the Board of Directors in the next year or until a successor shall have
been elected, appointed or shall have qualified, in accordance with the
Company’s By Laws.
(D) Business experience of directors/officers during the past five (5) years
Mr. Alfredo C. Ramos is the Chairman of the Board of the Company. He also
served as President of the Company until March 31, 2014. On January 1, 2017,
after the retirement of Mr. Francisco A. Navarro, he assumed as President of the
Company. For the past five (5) years, he has been a Director and/or Executive
Officer, and maintained business interests, in companies involved in publication,
sale and distribution of books, magazines and other printed media, transportation,
oil and gas exploration, mining, property development, shopping center and
department store, among others.
Ms. Presentacion S. Ramos is a Director of the Company. For the past five (5)
years, she has served as a Director and/or Executive Officer, and maintained
business interests, in companies involved in the publication, sale and distribution
of books, magazines and other printed media, department store, stock brokerage,
oil and gas exploration and mining, among others.
Mr. Christopher M. Gotanco is a Director of the Company. For the past five (5)
years, he has served as a director and/or executive officer in companies involved
in transportation, financial services, mining, oil and gas exploration, property
development and investment holdings, among others.






Mr. Adrian S. Ramos is a Director of the Company. He has served as a director
and/or executive officer in companies engaged in the publication, sale and
distribution of books and other printed media, investment holdings, securities,
property development and infrastructure, mining, and bulk water supply, among
others.
Mr. Gerard Anton S. Ramos joined the Company as Director in December 2015,
after the demise of Atty. Augusto B. Sunico. He has served as a director and/or
executive officer in companies involved in investment holdings, mining,
securities and sale and distribution of books, magazines and other printed media.
Ms. Maureen Alexandra Ramos-Padilla is a Director of the Company. She has
served as a director and/or executive officer, and maintained business interests, in
companies engaged in publication, sale and distribution of books, magazines and
other printed media; property development and stock brokerage.
Mr. Nicasio I. Alcantara is an Independent Director of the Company. For the past
five (5) years, he has served as a director and/or executive officer, and
maintained business interests, in companies involved in cement, financial
services, agriculture and diversified holdings, among others.
Mr. Honorio A. Poblador III is an Independent Director of the Company. For the
past five (5) years, he has served as a director and/or executive officer, and
maintained business interests, in companies involved in property development
and diversified holdings, among others.
Mr. Reynaldo E. Nazarea is a Director of the Company. He is also the Treasurer
and Vice President for Administration. For the past five (5) years, he has served
as Director of certain affiliated companies involved in financial services and
investment holdings.
Mr. Alessandro O. Sales is the Company’s Vice President for Exploration and
Production. He has formulated and implemented the Company’s oil exploration
and development programs for the past five (5) years.
Ms. Isabelita L. Matela has been Asst. Vice President for Finance since
October 1, 2009.
Mr. Dennis V. Panganiban joined the Company in 2011 as AVP for Exploration
and Production. Prior to joining Philodrill, he held a Managerial position in
NorAsian Energy Ltd., as Joint Venture and Asset Manager for several years.
Atty. Adrian S. Arias is the Company’s Corporate Secretary. He has been in
active corporate law practice for more than twenty (20) years and serves as a
Director of companies involved in financial services, retail, and distribution
support services.






(E) Directors with directorship(s) held in reporting companies
Director

Listed Company

Not Listed

Alfredo C. Ramos

Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation
Atlas Consolidated Mining & Dev’t. Corp.
Shang Properties, Inc.
United Paragon Mining Corporation
Vulcan Industrial & Mining Corporation

Alakor Corporation
MRT Development Corporation
MRT Holdings, Inc.
National Book Store, Inc.
Carmen Copper Corporation
Penta Capital Investment Corp.
Penta Capital Holdings, Inc.
Penta Capital Finance Corp.

Presentacion S. Ramos

Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation
Vulcan Industrial & Mining Corporation
United Paragon Mining Corporation

Alakor Corporation
Alakor Securities Corporation
National Book Store, Inc.

Christopher M. Gotanco

Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation
Boulevard Holdings, Inc.
United Paragon Mining Corporation
Vulcan Industrial & Mining Corporation

Adrian S. Ramos

Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation
Atlas Consolidated Mining & Devt. Corp.
United Paragon Mining Corporation
Vulcan Industrial & Mining Corp.

Maureen Alexandra RamosPadilla

Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation

MRT Development Corporation
North Triangle Development Corp.
Penta Capital Finance Corporation
Penta Capital Investment Corp.
MRT Holdings, Inc.
Alakor Corporation
Alakor Securities Corporation
National Book Store, Inc.
Aquatlas, Inc.
Carmen Copper Corporation
Zenith Holdings Corporation
Berong Nickel Corp.
National Book Store, Inc.

Nicasio I. Alcantara

Seafront Resources Corp.

Alsing Power Holdings, Inc.
Alsons Aquaculture Corp.
Alsons Corporation
AlsonsDev’t. & Investment Corp.
Alsons Land Corporation
BDO Private Bank
Conal Corporation
Conal Holdings Corporation
Indophil Resources NL
Site Group International Ltd.
Southern Philippines Power Corp.
Western Mindanao Power Corp.

Honorio A. Poblador III

Alsons Consolidated Resources

Gerard Anton S. Ramos

Anglo Philippine Holdings Corp.
Atlas Consolidated Mining & Devt. Corp.
United Paragon Mining Corporation

Elnor Investment Corporation
Asuncion Agro-Realty
Asmaco, Inc.
PobCor Inc.
Carmen Copper Corporation
Zenith Holdings Corporation
Alakor Securities Corporation

Reynaldo E. Nazarea

Anglo Philippine Holdings Corp.



Penta Capital Investment Corp.
Penta Capital Holdings, Inc.
Penta Capital Finance Corp.




(2)

Significant Employees
Other than its executive officers, the Company has not engaged the services of any
person who is expected to make significant contribution to the business of the Company.

(3)

Family Relationships
Mr. Alfredo C. Ramos, President and Chairman of the Board, is the husband of Ms.
Presentacion S. Ramos, Director. Mr. Gerard Anton S. Ramos, Mr. Adrian S. Ramos,
and Ms. Maureen Alexandra Ramos-Padilla, all Directors, are siblings, sons and daughter
of Mr. Alfredo C. Ramos and Ms. Presentacion S. Ramos.

(4)

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings
On February 17, 2017, Mr. Francisco Navarro filed a Complaint-Affidavit for
falsification of document against the following officers of the Company: Mr. Reynaldo E.
Nazarea (Treasurer and Vice President for Administration), Atty. Adrian S. Arias
(Corporate Secretary), and Ms. Isabelita L. Matela (Asst. Vice President for Finance),
relative to a quitclaim he signed in favor of the Company after he received his retirement
pay. Mr. Navarro claims the Quitclaim was falsified as he signed the document in
Mandaluyong City but did not appear before the Notarial Officer in Pasig City.
On July 17, 2017, Senior Assistant City Prosecutor Queruben R. Garcia issued a
Resolution dismissing the complaint for want of probable cause.
Mr. Navarro then filed a Motion for Reconsideration of the dismissal, but was
subsequently denied. A Petition for Review before the office of the Prosecutor General
was filed by Mr. Navarro and the same is still pending. Philodrill has filed its opposition
on the Petition for Review.
On 15 August 2017, Mr. Navarro filed three (3) separate criminal complaints against the
Directors, Officers and employees of Philodrill for:



•

Violation of Article 183 of the Revised Penal Code/Perjury against Mr.
Nazarea and Ms. Matela relative to their counter-affidavits in the
falsification case;

•

Violation of Article 183 of the Revised Penal Code/Perjury against Mr.
Nazarea and Ms. Laurente relative to the latter’s counter-affidavit in the
falsification case; and

•

Violation of Sec. 28 in relation to Sec. 144 of the Corporation Code against
Mr. Nazarea, Mr. Alfredo C. Ramos, Ms. Presentacion S. Ramos, Mr.
Gerard Anton S. Ramos, Mr. Christopher M. Gotanco, Mr. Maureen
Alexandra R. Padilla, and Atty. Arias due to the alleged removal of Mr.
Navarro from the Philodrill Board.




On 08 November 2017, Senior Asst. City Prosecutor Magpantay DISMISSED the
perjury case against Mr. Nazarea and Ms. Laurente for want of probable cause.
On 27 November 2017, Asst. City Prosecutor Hernandez DISMISSED the case for
Violation of the Corporation Code against the Ramos family, Mr. Nazarea, Atty. Arias
and Mr. Gotanco for want of probable cause. The perjury case against Mr. Nazarea and
Ms. Matela was likewise DISMISSED for lack of probable cause
Other than the foregoing case pending before the Office of the City Prosecutor of
Manadaluyong City, the Company is not aware of:
(1) any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of which a director, person
nominated to become a director, executive officer, promoter, or control person of the
Company was a general partner or executive officer either at the time of the bankruptcy
or within two (2) years prior that time;
(2) any conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, or
being subject to a pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign excluding traffic
violations and other minor offenses of any director, person nominated to become a
director, executive officer, promoter, or control person of the Company;
(3) any order, judgment or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of
any court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or temporarily, or
being subject to a pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, excluding traffic
violations and other minor offenses of any director, executive officer, promoter or
control person; and
(4) judgment against a director, person nominated to become a director, executive officer,
promoter, or control person of the Company found by a domestic or foreign court of
competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the Philippine SEC or comparable foreign body,
or a domestic or foreign exchange or electronic marketplace or self-regulatory
organization, to have violated a securities or commodities law, and the judgment has not
been reversed, suspended or vacated.
Item 10. Executive Compensation
(1) Summary Compensation Table
Information as to aggregate compensation paid or accrued during the last two (2) years
and to be paid in the ensuing year to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and four
other most highly compensated officers as follows:
Name
Alfredo C. Ramos
Reynaldo E. Nazarea
Alessandro O. Sales
Isabelita L. Matela
Dennis V. Panganiban



Position
(as of Dec 31, 2017)
Chairman & President
Treasurer & VP-Admin
VP-Exploration& Production
AVP-Finance
AVP-Exploration&Production

Year

Salary

Bonus

Other annual
Compensation




2016
2017
2018
(estimate)

13,702,619
15,759,105
16,547,060

-0-0-0-

1,993,930
1,678,157
1,762,065

2016
2017
2018
(estimate)

20,904,738
21,460,168
22,533,176

-0-0-0-

3,916,200
3,386,012
3,555,312

All Officers and
directors as a group
unnamed

(2) Compensation of Directors
(A) Standard Arrangement
For the most recently completed year, directors received a per diem of P5,000 per
month to defray their expenses in attending board meetings. However, from
September 2017, the per diem was increased to P10,000 per month, which will
continue to be received in the ensuing year. There are no other arrangements for
compensation of directors, as such, during the last year and for the ensuing year.
(B) Other Arrangements
Except for the entitlement to receive bonuses as determined by the management and
to receive additional remuneration under the provisions of the Company’s Stock
Appreciation Rights Plan, there are no other arrangements for compensation of
directors, as such, during the last year and ensuing year.
(3) Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change-in-Control
The Company maintains standard employment contracts with Messrs. Alfredo C. Ramos,
Reynaldo E. Nazarea, Alessandro O. Sales, Ms. Isabelita L. Matela and Dennis V.
Panganiban, all of which provide for their respective compensation and benefits,
including entitlement to health benefits, representation expenses and company car plan.
Other than what is provided under applicable labor laws, there are no compensatory plans
or arrangements with executive officers entitling them to receive more than
P2,500,000.00 as a result of their resignation, or any other termination of employment, or
from change in control of the Company.
The Company maintains a retirement plan pursuant to which an eligible employee will
receive an amount equal to a percentage of his final monthly salary for every year of
credited service. Based on the policy, the retirement pay of some officers of the
Company may exceed P2,500,000.00.
Certain employees, including directors of the Company, receive stock appreciation right,
further details of which are given in Note 12 to the Company’s 2017 Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements.






There are no warrants or options outstanding in favor of directors and officers of the
Company.
Item 11. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management
(1) Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners
As of December 31, 2017 the Company is not aware of anyone who beneficially owns more
than 5% of the Company’s common stock, except as set forth in the table below:
Class
Common

Common

Common

Note
ACommon
:
T
hCommon
e

Name/Address of Record
Owner
PCD Nominee
Corporation
37/F Tower 1 Enterprise
Center
6766 Ayala Ave, Makati
National Book Store, Inc.
4/F Quad Alpha Centrum
125 Pioneer,
Mandaluyong
Alakor Corporation
9/F Quad Alpha Centrum
125 Pioneer,
Mandaluyong
Alakor Securities
Corporation
5/F Quad Alpha Centrum
125 Pioneer,
Mandaluyong
BDO Securities
Corporation
27th Floor, Tower 1 &
Exchange Plaza, Ayala
Ave., Makati City
Anglo Philippine Holdings
Corp.
6/F Quad Alpha Centrum
125 Pioneer,
Mandaluyong

Citizenship

No of Shares
Held

Filipino

76,476,651,916

39.859%

National Book Store
Inc

Filipino

16,735,965,802

8.723%

Alakor Corporation

Filipino

16,735,965,801

8.723%

Anglo
Philippine
Holdings Corp.

Filipino

28,841,317,398

15.032%

Anglo
Philippine
Holdings Corp.

Filipino

36,462,800,000

19.004%

Name of Beneficial
Owner
Various clients
(Notes A, B and C)

n
uCommon
Anglo
Philippine
Filipino
536,170,330
m
Holdings Corp.
b
e
r
of shares held by PCD Nominee Corporation (PCD) is net of the 99,203,283,067
shares held by National Book Store Inc (NBS), Alakor Corporation (AC) and
Anglo Philippine Holdings Corp. (Anglo).
Note B: Of the 76,476,651,916 shares held by PCD, 75,308,960,389 shares have been
fully paid and issued, while 1,167,691,527 are subscribed. The 16,735,865,802
shares held by NBS and the 16,735,965,801 shares held by AC are all subscribed.
Of the 65,840,287,728 shares held by Anglo, 65,413,053,662 shares have been
fully paid and issued, while 427,234,066 shares are subscribed.
Note C: The shares registered in the name of PCD are beneficially owned by its clients.
Thus, PCD does not vote the number of shares registered in its name; instead,



Percentage
Ownership

0.279%




PCD issues a general proxy constituting and appointing each of its participants as
PCD’s proxy to vote for the number of shares owned by such participant in
PCD’s books as of Record Date. The proxies of NBS, AC and Anglo are
appointed by their respective Boards of Directors and the Company becomes
aware of such proxies only when the appointments are received by the Company.
Based on previous practice, Mr. Alfredo C. Ramos has been appointed proxy for
NBS and AC for the previous years. Mr. Ramos has direct/indirect
interest/shareholdings in NBS, AC and Anglo.

(2) Security Ownership of Management
The Company’s directors (D), Chief Executive Officer (CEO), and four (4) most highly
compensated executive officers (O) own the following number of voting shares as of
December 31, 2017:
Title of
Class
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common

Name of Beneficial Owner
Alfredo C. Ramos (D,O)
Nicasio I. Alcantara (D)
Honorio A. Poblador III
(D)
Presentacion S. Ramos (D)
Christopher M. Gotanco
(D)
Gerard Anton S. Ramos (D)
Adrian S. Ramos (D)
Alexandra R. Padilla (D)
Reynaldo E. Nazarea (D,O)
Alessandro O. Sales (O)
Isabelita L. Matela (O)
Dennis V. Panganiban (O)

Amount and Nature of
Beneficial Ownership
Direct
Indirect
P50,110 P1,000,795
10,000
3,622,000

Citizenship

Percent of Class

Filipino
Filipino

0.055%
0.189

299,900
1,250

0
770,000

Filipino
Filipino

0.016
0.040

48,600
1,000
12,500
100
1,000
0
2,731
0

2,454,634
0
333,231
800
860,563
0
6,058
10,000

Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino

0.130
<0.000
0.018
<0.000
0.045
0
<0.000
<0.000

As of December 31, 2017, the aggregate number of shares owned by the Company’s
directors, Chief Executive Officer and four (4) most highly compensated executive officers,
as a group, is 948,437,237 shares, or approximately 0.4943% of the Company’s outstanding
capital stock.
(3) Voting Trust Holders of 5% or More
To the extent known to the Company, there is NO PERSON holding more than 5% of any
class of the Company’s securities under a voting trust or similar agreement.
(4) Changes in Control
To the extent known to the Company, there are no arrangements, which may result in a
change in control of the Company.






Item 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
Related Party Transactions. There had been NO transaction during the last two (2) years to
which the Company was or is to be a party in which any director or executive officer of the
Company, or nominee for election as director, or owner of more than 10% of the Company’s
voting stock, or voting trust holder of 10% or more of the Company’s shares, or any member of
the immediate family (including spouse, parents, siblings, and in-laws) of any of these persons,
had or is to have a direct or indirect material interest.
In the ordinary and regular course of business, the Company had transactions with related parties
(i.e. companies with shareholders common with the Company) during the last two (2) years
consisting principally of advances to related parties. The identities of these related parties,
including the amounts and details of the transactions are disclosed in Note 16 to the Company’s
2017 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements, a copy of which is included in this Annual
Report.
(a) Business purpose of the arrangement. The business purpose of related party transaction
is to address immediate working capital requirements of related parties (in case of
advances to related parties).
(b) Identification of the related parties’ transaction business with the registrant and nature of
the relationship. See Note 16 to the Company’s 2017 Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements.
(c) How transaction prices were determined by parties. All transactions with related parties
are based on prevailing market/commercial rates at the time of the transaction.
(d) If disclosures represent that transactions have been evaluated for fairness, a description of
how the evaluation was made. There are NO disclosures representing that the transactions
with related parties have been evaluated for fairness inasmuch as the bases of all
transactions with related parties were the prevailing market/commercial rates at the time
of the transaction, or a valuation study conducted by a third party consultant over which
neither the Company nor the related parties have control or influence whatsoever.
(e) Any on-going contractual or other commitments as a result of the arrangement. NONE,
other than the repayment of money lent or advanced.
(f) There were NO transactions with parties that fall outside the definition of “related
parties” under SFAS/IAS No. 24. Neither were there any transactions with persons with
whom the Company or its related parties have a relationship that enabled the parties to
negotiate terms of material transaction that may not be available from other, more clearly
independent parties on an arms’ length basis.






PART IV – CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
(a)

The Company uses the evaluation system established by the SEC in its
Memorandum Circular No. 5 series of 2003, including the accompanying
Corporate Governance Self Rating Form (CG-SRF) to measure or determine the
level of compliance of the Board of Directors and top-level management with the
Company’s Corporate Governance Manual.

(b)

The Company undertakes a self-evaluation process regularly in accordance with
its Revised Manual on Corporate Governance (May 2017) and any deviation
from the Company’s corporate Governance Manual is reported to the
Management and the Board together with the proposed measures to achieve
compliance.

(c)

The Company is in full compliance with global best practices on good corporate
governance, applicable to it, as embodied in its Revised Manual on Corporate
Governance (May 2017).

(d)

1.

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for the Board and its
employees, and is being assessed regularly to cope with the dynamics of
the business. The Company has existing policies and procedures that can
identify and resolve potential conflicts of interest.

2.

Employees and officers undergo professional development programs
subject to meeting the criteria set by the Company. The Corporate
Governance & Nominations Committee (CG&NC) is engaged, together
with the Management Committee, in the Succession Planning of the
Executive officers, including the President. In the latter case, the
CG&NC coordinates closely with the Chairman any and all activities
involved in planning for the President’s succession.

The Company shall adopt improvement measures on its corporate governance as
the exigencies of its business will require from time to time.

PART V - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES
Item 13. Exhibits and Reports on SEC Form 17-C
(a)
(b)



Exhibits - see Index to Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules
Reports on SEC Form 17-C – see List




THE PHILODRILL CORPORATION
LIST OF ITEMS REPORTED UNDER SEC FORM 17C
Date of Report
January 26, 2017

Description
Scheduling of the Company’s Annual Stockholders’
Meeting on June 21, 2017 at The Legend Villas.

January 26, 2017

Mr. Reynaldo E. Nazarea was elected to the Board to
replace Mr. Francisco A. Navarro following the latter’s
retirement from the company. Mr. Adrian S. Ramos was
likewise re-elected as Director of the company.

January 26, 2017

The company as joint venture partner of Service Contract
14 block C-1 advised the Philippine Stock Exchange that
the Galoc JV through the operator has signed a binding
rig contract with Golden Maritime Corp., Ltd. For the
drillship “Deepsea Metro I” to drill the Galoc-7/7ST
appraisal well.

February 9, 2017

Amendment on January 26, 2017 disclosure. Clarification
regarding the retirement of Mr. Francisco A. Navarro.
Considering that Mr. Navarro’s intention was to retire as
President only and not as a Director. Mr. Navarro
remains as Director and Mr. Reynaldo E. Nazarea, agreed
to step down.

February 28, 2017

The Board approved the extension of the company’s
corporate life for which said corporation is to exist for
another fifty (50) years from and after June 25, 2019.

March 6, 2017

The company received “Summons” from the National
Labor Relation Commission, in connection with the
complaint filed by Mr. Francisco A. Navarro, former
President of the company.

March 16, 2017

Submission of a certification on the Company’s
Petroleum Service Contracts with the Department of
Energy (DOE).


March 17, 2017

Submission of one (1pc) CD-ROM List of Stockholders
as of Record Date March 16, 2016.

March 29, 2017

The Board of Directors of the Philodrill Corporation,
acting through the Audit Committee, has approved today,
March 28, 2017, The Company’s 2016 Audited Financial
Statements.



March 29, 2017

The company as JV partner of Service Contract 14 C-1,
following the disclosure of Nido Petroleum Ltd. to
Australian Stock Exchange (ASX), informed that the
drillship mobilized from Labuan, Malaysia to Galoc 7/7ST well location block C1, offshore, Philippines.

March 29, 2017

The company submitted the PSE Corporate Governance
Guidelines for Listed Companies. The board approved the
policy on training of Directors and the Diversity Policy.






April 3, 2017

The company as JV partner of Service Contract 14 C-1,
following the disclosure of Nido Petroleum Ltd. To the
ASX, informed that the Deepsea Metro I rig has
commenced drilling operations at the Galoc-7 appraisal
well location in block C-1, offshore, Philippines.

April 20, 2017

Further to the previous disclosure on Galoc 7 Drilling
Update and Results as disclosed by operator, copy of the
DOE Clearance on Philodrill’s disclosure based on
operator’s ASX disclosure was submitted.

April 26, 2017

Submission of disclosure of Nido Petroleum Limited to
the ASX on the drilling operations in Galoc 7ST-1. Said
information has been cleared and approved for release by
the DOE.

June 22, 2017

Elected directors of the Company to serve for one year
and until their successors shall have been elected at the
next annual meeting of stockholders in 2018; and
appointment of officers.

June 23, 2017

At the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the company
held on June 21, 2017, stockholders owning 67.49% of
the total outstanding shares of the company approved the
amendment of Article IV of the Articles of Incorporation
extending its corporate term to another fifty years from
and after June 25, 2019.

July 20, 2017

The Board approved the Corporate Governance and
Nominations Committee Charter.

September 8, 2017

Further to March 6, 2017 disclosure, regarding the
complaint for money claims filed by Mr. Francisco A.
Navarro against respondents The Philodrill Corporation,
Mr. Alfredo C. Ramos and Mr. Reynaldo E. Nazarea, the
company received the decision of the Labor Arbiter,
dismissing the complaint against respondents for utter
lack of merit.

September 14, 2017

The company received a “Subpoena” from the Office of
the Prosecutor, Mandaluyong City, in connection with the
complaint filed by Mr. Francisco A. Navarro, former
President of the company against the following members
of the board: Reynaldo E. Nazarea, Alfredo C. Ramos,
Presentacion S. Ramos, Christopher M. Gotanco,
Maureen Alexandra R. Padilla and the Corporate
Secretary, Adrian S. Arias, for violation of Sec 28
(Removal of directors or trustees) and 144 (Violation of
the Code) of the Corporation Code of the Phils.
Another “Subpoena” was likewise received from the
Office of the City Prosecutor, Mandaluyong City, in
connection with a second complaint filed by Mr.
Francisco A. Navarro against Mr. Reynaldo E. Nazarea
and Isabelita L. Matela, corporate officers of the
company, for False Testimony in Other Cases and Perjury
in Solemn Affirmation.






September 18, 2017

The company and Mr. Reynaldo E. Nazarea filed
complaints against Mr. Francisco A. Navarro for violation
of the Revised Penal Code, Article 315 (1)(a) (Attempted
Estafa) and Article 183 (Perjury) before the Office of the
City Prosecutor, Mandaluyong City.

September 19, 2017

The company received the resolution of the City
Prosecutor in the complaint for Falsification of Public
Documents filed by Mr. Francisco A. Navarro, former
President of the company against Reynaldo E. Nazarea,
Isabelita L. Matela, Grace Laurente, Atty. Adrian S. Arias
and Atty. Leticia M. Amon relative to the Quitclaim
signed by the latter, it was recommended that the
complaint be dismissed for want of probable cause.

December 1, 2017

50% balance on subscriptions to the Company’s 2009
Stock Rights Offering to be called for payment no later
than December 31, 2018.
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Authorization for Issuance of Financial Statements
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group as at December 31, 2017 and 2016
and for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 were authorized for issue by the Board of
Directors (BOD) on March 21, 2018.

2. Basis of Preparation, Basis of Consolidation, Statement of Compliance, Changes in Accounting
Policies and Disclosures, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Financial Reporting
Practices
Basis of Preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for crude oil inventory which is valued at net realizable value (NRV) and quoted available-forsale (AFS) financial assets which are measured at fair value. The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Philippine Peso, which is the Parent Company’s and its subsidiary’s functional and
presentation currency, rounded off to the nearest peso, except when otherwise indicated.
The consolidated financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous
period.
Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group as at
December 31 of each year, after eliminating intercompany balances and transactions. The financial
statements of the subsidiary are prepared for the same reporting year as the Parent Company using
consistent accounting policies. Control is achieved when the Parent Company is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee. The Parent Company controls an investee if and only if
the Parent Company has all of the following:
•
•
•

Power over the investee;
Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
The ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the Parent Company’s
returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this
presumption and when the Parent Company has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of
an investee, the Parent Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it
has power over an investee, including:
•
•
•

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
The Parent Company’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Parent Company re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a
subsidiary begins when the Parent Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Parent Company loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
income from the date the Parent Company gains control until the date the Parent Company ceases to
control the subsidiary.
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-3Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity
holders of the Parent of the Group.When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of the subsidiary to bring its accounting policies into line with the Parent Company’s accounting
policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. If the Parent Company loses control over a subsidiary, it:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;
Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests;
Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received;
Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained;
Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss; and
Reclassifies the Parent Company’s share of components previously recognized in OCI to profit or
loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Parent Company had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in compliance with the
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).
Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for the
following new and amended PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS), Philippine
Interpretations based on International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and
improvements to PFRS which were adopted as at January 1, 2017. Adoption of these
pronouncements did not have any significant impact on the Group’s financial position or performance
unless otherwise indicated.
•

Amendments to PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, Clarification of the Scope of
the Standard (Part of Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle)
The amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements in PFRS 12, other than those relating to
summarized financial information, apply to an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or
an associate (or a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an associate) that is classified (or
included in a disposal group that is classified) as held for sale.
Adoption of these amendments did not have any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

•

Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows, Disclosure Initiative
The amendments require entities to provide disclosure of changes in their liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and noncash changes (such as
foreign exchange gains or losses).
The Group has provided the required information in Note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements. As allowed under the transition provisions of the standard, the Group did not present
comparative information for the year ended December 31, 2016.
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•

Amendments to PAS 12, Income Taxes, Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized
Losses
The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of
taxable profits against which it may make deductions upon the reversal of the deductible
temporary difference related to unrealized losses. Furthermore, the amendments provide
guidance on how an entity should determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances
in which taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying
amount.
The Group applied the amendments retrospectively. However, their application has no effect on
the Group’s consolidated financial position and performance as the Group has no deductible
temporary differences or assets that are in the scope of the amendments.

Standards and Interpretations Issued but not yet Effective
Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated, the Group
does not expect that the future adoption of the said pronouncements will have a significant impact on
its consolidated financial statements. The Group intends to adopt the following pronouncements
when they become effective.
Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2018:
•

Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment, Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions
The amendments to PFRS 2 address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the classification of a sharebased payment transaction with net settlement features for withholding tax obligations; and the
accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment
transaction changes its classification from cash settled to equity settled.
On adoption, entities are required to apply the amendments without restating prior periods, but
retrospective application is permitted if elected for all three amendments and if other criteria are
met. Early application of the amendments is permitted.
The Group is currently assessing the potential effect of the amendments on its consolidated
financial statements.

•

Amendments to PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, Applying PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, with
PFRS 4
The amendments address concerns arising from implementing PFRS 9, the new financial
instruments standard before implementing the new insurance contracts standard. The
amendments introduce two options for entities issuing insurance contracts: a temporary
exemption from applying PFRS 9 and an overlay approach. The temporary exemption is first
applied for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. An entity may elect the
overlay approach when it first applies PFRS 9 and apply that approach retrospectively to financial
assets designated on transition to PFRS 9. The entity restates comparative information reflecting
the overlay approach if, and only if, the entity restates comparative information when applying
PFRS 9.
The amendments are not applicable to the Group since none of the entities within the Group have
activities that are predominantlyconnected with insurance or issue insurance contracts.
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•

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments
PFRS 9 reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces PAS 39,
FinancialInstruments: Recognition and Measurement, and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The
standard introduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge
accounting. Retrospective application is required but providing comparative information is not
compulsory. For hedge accounting, the requirements are generally applied prospectively, with
some limited exceptions.
The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting this standard.

•

PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
PFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under PFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer. The principles in PFRS 15 provide a more structured approach to measuring and
recognizing revenue.
The new revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under PFRSs. Either a full retrospective application or a modified
retrospective application is required for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018.
Early adoption is permitted.
The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting this standard.

•

Amendments to PAS 28, Measuring an Associate or Joint Venture at Fair Value (Part of Annual
Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle)
The amendments clarify that an entity that is a venture capital organization, or other qualifying
entity, may elect, at initial recognition on an investment-by-investment basis, to measure its
investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL). They also
clarify that if an entity that is not itself an investment entity has an interest in an associate or joint
venture that is an investment entity, the entity may, when applying the equity method, elect to
retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to
the investment entity associate’s or joint venture’s interests in subsidiaries. This election is made
separately for each investment entity associate or joint venture, at the later of the date on which
(a) the investment entity associate or joint venture is initially recognized; (b) the associate or joint
venture becomes an investment entity; and (c) the investment entity associate or joint venture first
becomes a parent. The amendments should be applied retrospectively, with earlier application
permitted.

•

Amendments to PAS 40, Investment Property, Transfers of Investment Property
The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under
construction or development into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a
change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management’s intentions
for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The amendments should
be applied prospectively to changes in use that occur on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments. Retrospective application is
only permitted if this is possible without the use of hindsight.
The amendments are not applicable to the Group since the Group does not have any investment
properties.
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•

Philippine Interpretation based on IFRIC-22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration
The interpretation clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date
on which an entity initially recognizes the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the
entity must determine a date of the transactions for each payment or receipt of advance
consideration. Entities may apply the amendments on a fully retrospective basis. Alternatively,
an entity may apply the interpretation prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in its scope
that are initially recognized on or after the beginning of the financial reporting period in which
the entity first applies the interpretation or the beginning of a prior reporting period presented as
comparative information in the financial statements of the financial reporting period in which the
entity first applies the interpretation.

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2019:
•

Amendments to PFRS 9, Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
The amendments to PFRS 9 allow debt instruments with negative compensation prepayment
features to be measured at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income. An
entity shall apply these amendments for annual financial reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019. Earlier application is permitted.

•

PFRS 16, Leases
PFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar
to the accounting for finance leases under PAS 17, Leases. The standard includes two
recognition exemptions for lessees - leases of ’low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and
short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date
of a lease, a lessee will recognize a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and
an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-ofuse asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognize the interest expense on the lease
liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.
Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events
(e.g., a change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognize the amount
of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
Lessor accounting under PFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under
PAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in
PAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases.
PFRS 16 also requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under PAS 17.
Early application is permitted, but not before an entity applies PFRS 15. A lessee can choose to
apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The
standard’s transition provisions permit certain reliefs.
The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting this standard.
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•

Amendments to PAS 28, Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
The amendments to PAS 28 clarify that entities should account under PFRS 9 its long-term
interests in an associate or joint venture to which the equity method is not applied. An entity
shall apply these amendments for annual financial reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019. Earlier application is permitted.
The Group is currently assessing the potential effect of the amendments on its consolidated
financial statements.

•

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
The interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of PAS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside the
scope of PAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties
associated with uncertain tax treatments.
The interpretation specifically addresses the following:
• Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately
• The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities
• How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax
credits and tax rates
• How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances
An entity must determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together
with one or more other uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the resolution
of the uncertainty should be followed.
The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting this interpretation.

Deferred effectivity:
• Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture
The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The
amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an associate or joint
venture involves a business as defined in PFRS 3, Business Combinations. Any gain or loss
resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that does not constitute a business, however, is
recognized only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture.
On January 13, 2016, the Financial Reporting Standards Council deferred the original effective
date of January 1, 2016 of the said amendments until the International Accounting Standards
Board completes its broader review of the research project on equity accounting that may result in
the simplification of accounting for such transactions and of other aspects of accounting for
associates and joint ventures.
The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting the amendments to this standard on its
consolidated financial statements.
The revised, amended and additional disclosures or accounting changes provided by the standards and
interpretations will be included in the consolidated financial statements in the year of adoption, if
applicable.

 # 



-8Summary of Significant Accounting Policiesand Financial Reporting Practices
Presentation of Financial Statements
The Group has elected to present all items of recognized income and expense in two statements: a
statement displaying components of profit or loss in the consolidated statement of income and a
second statement beginning with profit or loss and displaying components of OCI in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term investments made for
varying periods of up to three (3) months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group and earn interest at the respective short-term cash investment rates.
Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial Assets
Initial Recognition and Measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition asfinancial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (FVPL), loans and receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, AFS financial assets or
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial
assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in case of financial assets not recorded at FVPL,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date
i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Subsequent Measurement
Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less allowance for
impairment losses. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. Gains and losses are recognized in the
consolidated statement of income when the loans are derecognized or impaired as well as through the
amortization process.
Loans and receivables are included in current assets if maturity is within twelve (12) months from the
end of the reporting period or within the Group’s operating cycle, whichever is longer. Otherwise,
these are classified as noncurrent assets.
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Group’s loans and receivables consist of cashand cash
equivalents and receivables (see Notes 4 and 5).
AFS Financial Assets
AFS financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as AFS or are not
classified in any of the three other categories. The Group designates financial instruments as AFS
financial assets if they are purchased and held indefinitely and may be sold in response to liquidity
requirements or changes in market conditions. After initial recognition, AFS financial assets are
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-9measured at fair value with unrealized gains or losses being recognized directly in equity as “Net
unrealized gains (losses) on decline in value of AFS financial assets”.
When the financial asset is disposed of, the cumulative gains or losses previously recorded in equity
are recognized in the consolidated statement of income. Interest earned on the investments is
reported as interest income using the EIR method. Dividends earned on investments are recognized
in the consolidated statement of income as “Dividend income” when the right of payment has been
established. The Group considers several factors in making a decision on the eventual disposal of the
investment. The major factor of this decision is whether or not the Group will experience inevitable
further losses on the investment. These financial assets are classified as noncurrent assets unless the
intention is to dispose of such assets within twelve months from the end of the reporting period.
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Group classifies its investments in shares of stocks as AFS
financial assets (see Note 9).
Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized when:
•
•
•

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to
pay them in full without material delay to third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; or
the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a)has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognize the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to pay. In that
case, the Group also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
Impairment of Financial Assets
The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that has
occurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of the financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization, and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
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- 10 individually assessed financial asset, the asset is included in the group of financial assets with similar
credit risk and characteristics, and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for
impairment. Those similar credit risk characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash
flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtor’s ability to pay all amounts due
according to the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in
the collective assessment of impairment.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortized cost has
been incurred, the amount of loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original EIR (i.e., the EIR computed at initial
recognition). All impairment losses are recorded only through the use of an allowance account. The
amount of loss is recognized in consolidated statement of income.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized
in consolidated statement of income, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed
what its amortized cost could have been had there been no impairment at the reversal date.
In relation to loans and receivables, a provision for impairment is made when there is objective
evidence (such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor) that
the Group will not be able to collect all the amounts due under the original terms of the invoice.
Objective impairment evidence may constitute the increased probability of insolvency, or significant
financial difficulties, of the debtor. The carrying amount of the receivable is reduced through the use
of an allowance account. Impaired receivables are derecognized when they are assessed as
uncollectible.
AFS Financial Assets
For AFS financial assets, the Group assesses at end of the reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. In case of equity investments
classified as AFS financial assets, this would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the investments below its cost. ‘Significant’ is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and ‘prolonged’ against the period in which the fair value has been below its original cost.
When there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognized in OCI, is removed from equity and recognized in consolidated statement of income.
Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through the consolidated statement of
income while increases in fair value after impairment are recognized directly in equity through the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
If there is objective evidence of impairment on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at
fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return of a similar financial asset.
The Group’s financial assets are in the nature of AFS financial assetsand loans and receivables. As at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Group has no financial assets at FVPL, HTM investments and
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge.
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- 11 Financial Liabilities
Initial Recognition and Measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and
borrowings, trade and other payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of interest-bearing loans
and borrowings and trade and other payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The Group’s financial liabilities as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are in the nature of trade and
other payables. The Group has no financial liabilities at FVPL and derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge.
Subsequent Measurement
Trade and Other Payables
This category pertains to financial liabilities that are not held for trading, not derivatives, or not
designated at FVPL upon the inception of the liability.
After initial recognition, these liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR
method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any issue costs, and any discount or
premium on settlement. Gains and losses are recognized in consolidated statement of income when
the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the amortization process.
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Group classifies its accounts payable and accrued liabilities,
and dividends payable as trade and other payables (see Note 12).
Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
has expired.
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income.
Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statements of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
Fair Value Measurement
The Group measures financial instruments, such as AFS financial assets, at fair value at each end of
financial reporting period.
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- 12 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:
•
•

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.
A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
•
•
•

Level 1 -Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and
Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of the reporting period.
The fair value of financial instruments that are actively traded in organized financial markets is
determined by reference to quoted market close prices at the close of business on the end of the
reporting period.
For financial instruments where there is no active market, fair value is determined using valuation
techniques. Such techniques include comparison to similar investments for which market observable
prices exist and discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation models.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.
Interest in Jointly Controlled Operations
A joint operation is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement.
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- 13 In relation to its interests in joint operations, the Group recognizes its:
• Assets, including its share of any assets held jointly
• Liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly
• Revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation
• Expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly
These are consolidated on a line by line basis.
Crude Oil Inventory
Crude oil inventory is carried at NRV at the time of production. NRV is the estimated selling price
less cost to sell. The estimated selling price is the market value of crude oil inventory based on
Platt’s Dubai monthly average of the mid-day crude oil prices for the reporting month and is adjusted
taking into account fluctuations of price directly relating to events occurring after the end of the
reporting period to the extent that such events confirm conditions existing at the end of the reporting
period. Estimated cost to sell is the cost incurred necessary to complete the sale (e.g., freight charges,
transportation costs, etc.).
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depletion and depreciation, and any
impairment in value. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of such property and equipment
when that cost is incurred and the recognition criteria are met.
The initial cost of property and equipment, other than wells, platforms, and other facilities, comprises
its purchase price, including import duties, nonrefundable purchase taxes and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditures incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, are normally charged to income in the period the costs are incurred.
In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in
the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property and
equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as
additional costs of property and equipment. Major maintenance and major overhaul costs that are
capitalized as part of property and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of their estimated useful lives, typically the period until the next major maintenance or inspection, and
the estimated useful lives of the related property and equipment.
Wells, platforms, and other facilities are depleted on a field basis under the unit-of-production (UOP)
method based upon estimates of proved developed reservesexcept in the case of assets whose useful
life is shorter than the lifetime of the field, in which case the straight-line method is applied. The
depletion base includes the exploration and development cost of producing oil fields.
Depreciation of property and equipment, other than wells, platforms, and other facilities, is computed
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
Category
Office condominium units and improvements
Transportation equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment

Number of Years
20
5
5
3
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- 14 Depletion and depreciationof an item of property and equipment begins when it becomes available for
use, i.e., when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management.
Depletion and depreciation ceases when an item of property and equipment is fully depleted or
depreciated or at the earlier of the date that the item is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale) in accordance with PFRS 5,
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, and the date the asset is
derecognized.
When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depletion, and
depreciation, and any allowance for impairment are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss
resulting from their disposals is recognized in consolidated statement of income.
The asset’s reserves, useful lives and depletion and depreciation methods are reviewed periodically to
ensure that the periods and methods of depletion and depreciation are consistent with the expected
pattern of economic benefits from items of property and equipment.
Fully depreciated assets are retained in the account until they are no longer in use and no further
depreciation is charged to current operations.
Decommissioning and Restoration Costs
Estimated decommissioning and restoration costs are based on current requirements, technology and
price levels and are stated at net present value. The associated decommissioning costs are capitalized
as part of the carrying amount of the related property and equipment account subject to the
appropriate depreciation and amortization method. In respect of oil and natural gas production
activities, the net present value calculation of the liability is based on the economic life of the
production assets and discounted using the risk-free rate for the Group that existed when the liability
was initially measured. That amortization is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the
liability and as an expense classified as accretion expense in the consolidated statement of income.
The obligation is reflected under decommissioning liability in the consolidated statements of financial
position. The effects of changes resulting from revisions to the timing or the amount of the original
estimate of the liability are incorporated on a prospective basis.
Investments in Associates
Associates are entities which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies. The investment in associates are accounted using equity method.
The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income and its share of post-acquisition movements in OCI is recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. Distributions received from an investee
reduce the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivable/s, the Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
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- 15 provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
Deferred OilExploration Costs
Exploration and evaluation activity involves the search for hydrocarbon resources, the determination
of technical feasibility and the assessment of commercial viability of an identified resource. Once the
legal right to explore has been acquired, costs directly associated with exploration are capitalized
under “Deferred oil exploration costs” account. The Group’s deferred oilexploration costs are
specifically identified of each Service Contract (SC) area. All oilexploration costs relating to each SC
are deferred pending the determination of whether the contract area contains oil reserves in
commercial quantities. Capitalized expenditures include costs of license acquisition, technical
services and studies, exploration drilling and testing, and appropriate technical and administrative
expenses. General overhead or costs incurred prior to having obtained the legal rights to explore an
area are recognized as expense in the consolidated statement ofincome when incurred.
If no potentially commercial hydrocarbons are discovered, the deferred oil exploration asset is written
off through the consolidated statement of income. If extractable hydrocarbons are found and, subject
to further appraisal activity (e.g., the drilling of additional wells), it is probable that they can be
commercially developed, the costs continue to be carried under deferred oilexploration costs account
while sufficient/continued progress is made in assessing the commerciality of the hydrocarbons.
Costs directly associated with appraisal activity undertaken to determine the size, characteristics and
commercial potential of a reservoir following the initial discovery of hydrocarbons, including the
costs of appraisal wells where hydrocarbons were not found, are initially capitalized as deferred
oilexploration costs.
At the completion of the exploration phase, if technical feasibility is demonstrated and commercial
reserves are discovered, then, following the decision to continue into the development phase, the oil
exploration costs relating to the SC, where oil in commercial quantities are discovered, is first
assessed for impairment and (if required) any impairment loss is recognized, then the remaining
balance is transferred to “Wells, platforms, and other facilities” account shown under the “Property
and equipment” account in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Deferred oilexploration costs are assessed at each reporting period for possible indications of
impairment. This is to confirm the continued intent to develop or otherwise extract value fromthe
discovery. When this is no longer the case or is considered as areas permanently abandoned, the costs
are written off through the consolidated statement of income. Exploration areas are considered
permanently abandoned if the related permits of the exploration have expired and/or there are no
definite plans for further exploration and/or development.
The recoverability of deferred oilexploration costs is dependent upon the discovery of economically
recoverable reserves, the ability of the Group to obtain necessary financing to complete the
development of reserves and future profitable production or proceeds from the disposition of
recoverable reserves.
Farm-ins and Farm-outs
The Group does not record any expenditure made by the farminee on its account. It also does not
recognize any gain or loss on its exploration and evaluation farm-out arrangements, but redesignates
any cost previously capitalized in relation to the whole interest. Any cash consideration received
directly from the farminee is credited against costs previously capitalized in relation to the whole
interest with any excess accounted for by the farmor as a gain on disposal.
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- 16 Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets
Crude Oil Inventory
The Group determines the NRV of inventories at the time of production. If the cost of the inventories
exceeds its NRV, the asset is written down to its NRV and impairment loss is recognized in the
consolidated statement of income in the period. In the case when NRV of the inventories increased
subsequently, the NRV will increase the carrying amounts of inventories but only to the extent of
their original acquisition costs.
Investments in Associates
The Group determines at each end of the reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that
the investment in associates is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment being the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and the carrying
value and recognizes the amount as part of “Others - net” in the consolidated statement of income.
An assessment is made at the end of the reporting period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indications exist, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the investment’s
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying
amount of the investments is increased to its recoverable amount. The increased amount cannot
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for the assets in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the consolidated statement of
income.
Deferred Oil Exploration Costs
An impairment review is performed, either individually or at the cash generating unit (CGU) level,
when there are indicators that the carrying amount of the deferred oil exploration costs may exceed
their recoverable amounts. To the extent that this occurs, the excess is fully provided against in the
reporting period in which this is determined. Deferred oil exploration costs are reassessed on a
regular basis and these costs are carried forward provided that at least one of the following conditions
is met:
•
•
•

the period for which the entity has the right to explore in the specific area has expired during the
period or will expire in the near future, and is not expected to be renewed;
such costs are expected to be recouped in full through successful development and exploration of
the area of interest or alternatively, by its sale; or
exploration and evaluation activities in the area of interest have not yet reached a stage which
permits a reasonable assessment of the existence or otherwise of economically recoverable
reserves, and active and significant operations in relation to the area are continuing, or planned
for the future.

Property and Equipment, Nonfinancial Prepayments and Other Current and Noncurrent Assets
The Group assesses, at each reporting period, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset or CGU is written down to
its recoverable amount. The estimated recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. The fair value less costs to sell is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date less the costs of disposal, while value in use is the present value of estimated future
cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its
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- 17 useful life. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. Impairment losses are recognized as
part of “Other income - net” in the consolidated statement of income.
Recovery of impairment loss recognized in prior years is recorded when there is an indication that the
impairment loss recognized for the asset no longer exists or has decreased. The recovery is recorded
in the consolidated statement of income. However, the increased carrying amount of an asset due to a
recovery of an impairment loss is recognized to the extent it does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of depreciation, depletion and amortization) had no impairment loss
been recognized for that asset in prior years.
Capital Stock
Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. When the Group issues more than one
class of stock, a separate account is maintained for each class of stock and the number of shares
issued. Incremental costs incurred directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in
equity as a deduction from proceeds, net of tax.
Own equity instruments which are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognized at cost and deducted
from equity. No gain or loss is recognized in consolidated statement of income on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying
amount and the consideration received is recognized in paid-in capital from sale of treasury shares.
Retained Earnings
Retained earnings represent the cumulative balance of net income or loss, dividend distributions, prior
period adjustments, effects of changes in accounting policy and other capital adjustments.
Earnings per Share (EPS)
Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income attributable to ordinary equity holders to the Parent
Company by the weighted averagenumber of common shares outstanding, after giving retroactive
effect for any stock dividends,stock splits or reverse stock splits during the year.
Diluted EPS is computed by dividing net income ordinary equity holders to the Parent Company by
the weighted average number of commonshares outstanding during the year, after giving retroactive
effect for any stock dividends, stock splits or reverse stock splits during the year, and adjusted for the
effect of dilutive options.
Outstanding stock options will have a dilutive effect under the treasury stock method only when the
average market price of the underlying common share during the period exceeds the exercise price of
the option. Where the effect of the exercise of all outstanding options has anti-dilutive effect, basic
and diluted EPS are stated at the same amount.
Dividends on Capital Stock
Dividends on common shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when approved
by the Parent Company’s BOD. Dividends for the year that are approved after the end of the
reporting period are dealt with as an event after the reporting period.
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- 18 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received, excluding discounts and other sales taxes or duty. The following specific
recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
Petroleum Revenue
Revenue is derived from sale of petroleum to third party customers. Sale of petroleum is
recognizedupon lifting based on the Group’s participating interest. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of consideration receivable, excluding discounts, and other sales tax or duty based on the
Group’s participating interest.
Interest Income
Interest income is recognized as the interest accrues taking into account the effective yield on the
asset.
Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the payment is established.
Costs and Expenses
Costs and expenses are recognized in the consolidated statement of income when a decrease in future
economic benefit related to a decrease in an asset or an increase of a liability has arisen that can be
measured reliably. Costs and expenses are recognized in the consolidated statement of income in the
year in which they are incurred.
Share in Costs and Operating Expenses
Share in costs and operating expenses include production costs of SC-14 and transportation costs per
lifting and ending inventory which is recognized upon the allocation of the amounts mentioned by the
SC. Allocation is done by the use of the Group’s participating interest in the SC.
General and Administrative Expenses
Expenses incurred in the direction and general administration of day-to-day operation of the Group
are generally recognized when the services are used or the expenses arise.
OCI
OCI comprises items of income and expenses (including items previously presented under the
consolidated statement of changes in equity) that are not recognized in the consolidated statement of
income for the year in accordance with PFRS.
Share-Based Payment Transactions
Certain employees (including directors) of the Parent Company receive remuneration in the form of
share appreciation right (SAR). This entitles the employees to receive cash which is equal to the
excess of the market value of the Group’s shares over the award price as of a given date.
In valuing cash-settled transactions, the entity measures the goods or services acquired and the
liability incurred at the fair value of the liability. Until the liability is settled, the entity remeasures the
fair value of the liability at each end of the reporting period and at the date of settlement, with any
changes in fair value recognized in consolidated statement of income for the period. The fair value is
determined using an appropriate pricing model, further details of which are given in Note 12.
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- 19 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when: (a) the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event; (b) it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation; and (c) a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows at a pretax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time
value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognized as an interest expense.
Provision for Decommissioning Costs
The Group records the present value of estimated costs of legal and constructive obligations required
to restore oil fields in the period in which the obligation is incurred. The nature of these restoration
activities includes dismantling and removing structures, rehabilitating wells and platforms, and
dismantling operating facilities. The obligation generally arises when the asset is installed or the
environment is disturbed at the production location. When the liability is initially recognized, the
present value of the estimated cost is capitalized by increasing the carrying amount of the related oil
assets. Over time, the discounted liability is increased for the change in present value based on the
discount rates that reflect current market assessments and the risks specific to the liability. The
periodic unwinding of the discount is recognized in the consolidated statement of income under
“Accretion expense”. Additional disturbances or changes in decommissioning costs will be
recognized as additions or charges to the corresponding assets and provision for decommissioning
when they occur.
Where decommissioning is conducted systematically over the life of the operation, rather than at the
time of closure, provision is made for the estimated outstanding continuous decommissioning work at
each end of the reporting period and the cost is charged to the consolidated statement of income. For
closed oil fields, changes to estimated costs are recognized immediately in the consolidated statement
of income.
The ultimate cost of decommissioning is uncertain and cost estimates can vary in response to many
factors including changes to the relevant legal requirements, the emergence of new restoration
techniques or experience. The expected timing of expenditure can also change, for example in
response to changes in oil reserves or production rates. As a result, there could be significant
adjustments to the provision for decommissioning, which would affect future financial results.
Decommissioning fund committed for use in satisfying environmental obligations are included under
“Other noncurrent assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Retirement Benefit Liability
The Group has a funded, non-contributory defined benefits retirement plan. The net defined benefit
liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if any), adjusted for any effect of limiting a
net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The asset ceiling is the present value of any economic
benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the
plan.
The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method. This method reflects service rendered by employees to the date of
valuation and incorporates assumptions concerning the employees’ projected salaries.
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- 20 Defined benefit costs comprise the following:
• Service cost
• Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset
• Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset
Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on
non-routine settlements are recognized as “Retirement benefit expense” under personnel costs in
the consolidated statement ofincome. Past service costs are recognized when plan amendment or
curtailment occurs.
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by applying
the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Net interest
on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as “Interest income” in the consolidated
statement of income.
Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are recognized
immediately in OCI in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are not reclassified to the
consolidated statement of income in subsequent periods. Remeasurements are recognized in
“Retained earnings” after the initial adoption of the Revised PAS 19.
Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund or qualifying insurance
policies. Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Group, nor can they be paid directly to
the Group. Fair value of plan assets is based on market price information. When no market price is
available, the fair value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a
discount rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected
disposal date of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period until the settlement of
the related obligations). If the fair value of the plan assets is higher than the present value of the
defined benefit obligation, the measurement of the resulting defined benefit asset is limited to the
present value of economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan.
The Group’s right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined
benefit obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only when reimbursement is
virtually certain.
The standard requires an entity to recognize short-term employee benefits when an employee has
rendered service in exchange of those benefits.
Income Taxes
Current Income Tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authority. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period.
Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the
consolidated statement of income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.
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- 21 -

Deferred Income Tax
Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences
at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:
•

•

where the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable income or loss; and
in respect of taxable temporary difference associated with investments in foreign subsidiaries and
interest in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will no reverse in a foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward
benefits of unused tax credits from excess of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over the regular
corporate income tax (RCIT) and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry-forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized except:
•

•

where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable income or loss;
and
in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investment in foreign subsidiaries
and interests in joint ventures, deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
income will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred income tax
assets are reassessed at each end of the reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be
recovered.
In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investment in associates, deferred
income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilized.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right
exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred income taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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- 22 Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are disclosed
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent
assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.
Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded using the applicable exchange rate at the
date of the transaction. Outstanding monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated using the applicable closing functional currency exchange rate at the end of the
reporting period. Foreign exchange gains or losses arising from foreign currency-denominated
transactions and translations are recognized in the consolidated statement of income.
Nonmonetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transaction. Nonmonetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined. The gain or loss arising on transaction of nonmonetary items measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in the fair value of the item.
Segment Reporting
Currently, the Group has only onebusiness segment. The Parent Company is primarily involved in oil
exploration and production while PPC is primarily engaged in production, supply, trading and
generation of electric power using various energy sources. Revenue generated consists mainly of
revenue from petroleum operations. Other income is derived from equity in net earnings of
associates. PPC has not yet started commercial operation since its incorporation therefore, expenses
were only incurred during the year.
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the
President and Chairman of the Parent Company who makes strategic decisions.
Events After the End of the Reporting Period
Events after the end of the reporting period that provide additional information about the Group’s
position at the end of the reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Events after the end of the reporting periodare not adjusting events are disclosed in the
notes to consolidated financial statements when material to the consolidated financial statements.

3. Significant Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Assumptions
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial information
and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the year. The judgments, estimates and
assumptions used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are based upon
management’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the consolidated
financial statements. Future events may occur which can cause the assumptions used in arriving at
those judgments and estimates to change. The effects will be reflected in the consolidated financial
statements as they become reasonably determined.
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- 23 Judgments
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimations and assumptions, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements. However, uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of the assets or liability affected in the future periods.
Determining Functional Currency
Based on the economic substance of the underlying circumstances relevant to the Group,
the functional currency of the Parent Company and its subsidiary has been determined to be the
Philippine peso. The Philippine Peso is the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Group operates.
Classifying Financial Instruments
The Group classifies financial instruments, or its components, on initial recognition as a financial
asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangement and the definitions of a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument. The
substance of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form, governs its classification in the
consolidated statements of financial position.
The Group has various investments in equity instruments that were purchased not for the purpose of
selling and repurchasing in the near term. These are held indefinitely and may be sold in response to
liquidity requirements or changes in market conditions. Accordingly, the Group has classified these
instruments as AFS financial assets. The Group does not intend to dispose the investments within
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.
The classification of financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group are presented inNote22.
Determining and Classifying a Joint Arrangement
The Group determines a joint arrangement in accordance with its control over the entity or joint
operations rather than its legal form.
The Group is a member in various jointly controlled operations in oil drilling. These jointly
controlled operations are entered into with the Philippine Government though SCs and Geophysical
Survey and Exploration Contracts (GSECs). Significant influence in each SCs is held by the lead
operator. The determination of joint control of the Group in each SCs is presented in Note 10.
Determining and Classifying Investments in Associates
The Group has investments in associates. These are shares purchased not for the purpose of trading.
The Group considers that it has a significant influence in the associates as the Group is represented in
the governance of the associates. In assessing whether significant influence still exists, the Group
considered not only its percentage ownership but other factors such as the board seat representations
ithasintheassociate’sgoverningbody.Significant influence in the associate is also established by virtue
of the agreement entered.
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Group has investments in associates that were assessed with
significant influence (see Note 8).
Assessing Production Start Date
The Group assesses the stage of each oil field to determine when the project moves from the
exploration to the production phase. When a project moves into the production stage, the
capitalization of certain exploration or development costs ceases and costs are either regarded as
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- 24 inventory or expensed, except for capitalizable costs related to wells, platforms, and other facilities
additions or improvements. It is also at this point that depletion commences.
Assessing Units-of-Production Depletion
Estimated recoverable proved and probable reserves are used in determining the depletion of wells,
platforms, and oil fields assets. This results in a depletion charge proportional to the depletion of the
anticipated remaining life. Each item’s life, which is assessed annually, has regard to both physical
life limitations and to present assessments of economically recoverable reserves of the oil field. The
calculations require the use of estimates of future capital expenditure. The Company uses barrels of
oil produced as the basis for depletion. Any change in estimates is accounted for prospectively. The
rate used by the Company in computing depletion is P
=806.9 and P
=768.1per barrel for SC-14C1 Galoc
for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Assessing Recoverability of Deferred Income Tax Assets
The Group reviews the carrying amount of deferred income tax assets at each end of the reporting
period and is adjusted accordingly to the extent that it is probable that sufficient future taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized. The Group has
recognized deferred income tax assets amounting to P
=38.0 million and P
=32.2 million as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 20).
Estimates and Assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertaintyat
the end of the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial reporting period are discussed
below:
Estimating Oil Reserves
Hydrocarbon reserves are estimates of the amount of hydrocarbons that can be economically and
legally extracted from the Group’s oil properties.The Group estimates its commercial reserves and
resources based on information compiled by appropriately qualified persons relating to the geological
and technical data on the size, depth, shape and grade of the hydrocarbon body and suitable
production techniques and recovery rates. Commercial reserves are determined using estimates of oil
in place, recovery factors and future commodity prices, the latter having an impact on the total
amount of recoverable reserves and the proportion of the gross reserves which are attributable to the
host government under the terms of the Production-Sharing Agreements. Future development costs
are estimated using assumptions as to the number of wells required to produce the commercial
reserves, the cost of such wells and associated production facilities, and other capital costs.
All proved and probable reserve estimates are subject to revision, either upward or downward, based
on new information, such as from development drilling and production activities or from changes in
economic factors, including product prices, contract terms or development plans. Estimates of
reserves for undeveloped or partially developed fields are subject to greater uncertainty over their
future life than estimates of reserves for fields that are substantially developed and depleted.
As those fields are further developed, new information may lead to revisions.
The change in estimate during the year resulted to lower depletion of wells, platforms, and other
facilities amounted toP
=89.8 million and P
=105.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2017 and
2016, respectively (see Notes 6 and 7).
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Estimating Depletion Based on UOP
Wells, platforms, and other facilities are depleted using the UOP method over the total proved and
probable developed reserves. This results in amortization charge proportional to the depletion of the
anticipated remaining production from the field.
Each item’s life, which is assessed annually, has regard to both its physical life limitations and to
present assessments of economically recoverable reserves of the field at which the asset is located.
These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions, including the amount of recoverable
reserves and estimates of future capital expenditure. The calculation of the UOP rate of depletion
could be impacted to the extent that actual production in the future is different from current forecasted
production based on total proved and probable reserves, or future capital expenditure estimate
changes. Changes to proved and probable reserves could arise due to changes in the assumptions
used in estimating the reserves. Changes are accounted for prospectively.
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the carrying values of wells, platforms, and other facilities
amounted to P
=625.5 million and P
=633.5 million, respectively (see Note 7). In 2017, 2016 and 2015,
depletion expense incurred by the Group amounted to =
P89.8 million,P
=105.1 million and
=113.7 million, respectively (see Notes 6 and 7).
P
AssessingRecoverability of Deferred Oil Exploration Costs
The Group assesses impairment on deferred oil exploration costs when facts and circumstances
suggest that the carrying amount of the asset may exceed its recoverable amount. Until the Group has
sufficient data to determine technical feasibility and commercial viability, deferred oil exploration
costs need not be assessed for impairment. Facts and circumstances that would require an impairment
assessment as set forth in PFRS 6, Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources, are as
follows:
•
•
•

•

The period for which the Group has the right to explore in the specific area has expired or will
expire in the near future, and is not expected to be renewed;
Substantive expenditure on further exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources in the
specific area is neither budgeted nor planned;
Exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources in the specific area have not led to the
discovery of commercially viable quantities of mineral resources and the entity has decided to
discontinue such activities in the specific area; and
Sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a development in the specific area is likely to
proceed in full from successful development or by sale.

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the carrying values of deferred oil exploration costs amounted to
=1,043.5million and P
P
=1,028.3million, respectively. There was no allowance for unrecoverable
deferred oil exploration costs as at December 31, 2017 and 2016. No impairment losses were
recognized in 2017, 2016 and 2015 (see Note 10).
Assessing Impairmentof Receivables
The Group assesses on a regular basis if there is objective evidence of impairment of receivables.
The amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original EIR. The Group
uses individual impairment assessment on its receivables. The Group did not assess its receivables
for collective impairment due to the few counterparties which can be specifically identified and which
can no longer be grouped according to similar credit risk characteristics.
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- 26 The amount of impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of income with a
corresponding reduction in the carrying value of the receivables through an allowance account.
Total carrying value of receivables amounted to P
=357.6 millionandP
=332.9 million as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. There wasno allowance for impairment on these
receivables as at December 31, 2017 and 2016.No impairment losses were recognized in 2017, 2016
and 2015 (see Note 5).
Estimating NRV of Crude Oil Inventory
The NRV of crude oil inventory is based on the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
Based on these estimates, an inventory write-down is recognized for any excess of carrying value
over the NRV of the inventory.
The carrying value of crude oil inventory amounted toP
=71.2 millionandP
=54.7million as at December
31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. There wasno allowance for impairment on these inventory as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016. Noprovision for impairment losses on inventory is recognized in 2017,
2016 and 2015 (see Note 6).
AssessingImpairment of AFS Financial Assets
The Group treats quoted AFS investments as impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below its cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists
‘Significant’ is evaluated against the original cost of the investment and ‘prolonged’ against the
period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. When there is evidence of
impairment, the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in OCI, is
removed from equity and recognized in consolidated statement of income.The Group evaluates the
financial health of the issuer, among others.
In the case of AFS equity instruments, the Group expands its analysis to consider changes in the
issuer’s industry and sector performance, legal and regulatory framework, changes in technology and
other factors that affect the recoverability of the Group’s investments.
The fair values of quoted AFS financial assets amounted to P
=51.0 millionand P
=62.6 million as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.The Group hasa net unrealized loss on the decline of fair
value recognized in equity on these financial assetsof P
=30.3 million and P
=16.3 millionas at December
31, 2017 and 2016.Net unrealized gains (losses) on decline in value of AFS financial assets amounted
(P
=14.0 million), =
P8.0 million and (P
=147.8 million) in 2017, 2016 and 2015
(see Note 9).
Estimating Provision for Decommissioning Costs
Significant estimates and assumptions are made in determining the provision for decommissioning.
Factors affecting the ultimate amount of liability include estimates of the extent and costs of
decommissioning activities, technological changes, regulatory changes, cost increases, and changes in
discount rates. Those uncertainties may result in future actual expenditure differing from the amounts
currently provided.
Estimating Retirement Benefit Expense
The cost of defined benefit retirement plans and other benefits is determined using actuarial
valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, investment
yield and future salary increases, among others.
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- 27 While management believes that its assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant
differences in actual experience or significant changes in the assumptions may materially affect the
Group’s retirement obligations. The Group recognized retirement benefit expense amounting to
=3.6 million, P
P
=5.3million and P
=4.7 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively, and related
retirement benefit liability amounted to P
=4.8 million and P
=2.6 million as at December 31, 2017 and
2016, respectively (see Note 19).
AssessingRecoverability of Nonfinancial Assets
Crude oil inventory, wells, platforms, and other facilities, investments in associates and other current
and noncurrent assets are reviewed for impairment losses whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount is not recoverable. The factors that the Group
considers important which could trigger an impairment review include the following:
•
•
•

Significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results;
Significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall
business; and
Significant negative industry or economic trends.

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds
its recoverable amount which is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows.
There wasno allowance for impairment on these nonfinancial assets as at December 31, 2017 and
2016. In 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Group has not recognized impairment losses on its crude oil
inventory, wells, platforms, and other facilities, investment in associates, and other current and
noncurrent assets.
The carrying amount of crude oil inventory, which is equal to its NRV, amounted to P
=71.2 millionand
=54.7 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 6).
P
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the carrying values of wells, platforms, and other facilities
amounted to P
=625.5 millionand P
=633.5 million, respectively (see Note 7).
Acquisition cost of investment in associates amounted to P
=633.5 million as at December 31, 2017 and
2016. The carrying value of these investments in associates amounted to P
=784.9 millionand
=762.9 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 8).
P
The carrying amount of other nonfinancial assets, which include advances to officers and employees,
other current assets and other noncurrent assets, amounted toP
=11.5 million and P
=4.7 million as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Estimating Contingencies
By their nature, contingencies will only be resolved when one or more future events occur or fail to
occur. The assessment of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment and
estimates of the outcome of future events (see Note 25).
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4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash on hand and in banks
Short-term investments

2017
P
=25,999,116
608,386,407
P
=634,385,523

2016
P
=27,900,501
692,034,635
P
=719,935,136

Cash in banks earn interest at prevailing bank deposit rates. Short-term investments are made for
varying periods of up to three (3) months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at respective short-term investment rates.
Interest earned from cash in banks and short-term investments in 2017, 2016 and 2015 amounted to
=13.3 million, =
P
P13.8 million and P
=13.1 million, respectively. Accrued interest receivable as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to P
=1.3 million and P
=1.4 million, respectively (see Note 5).
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Group has United States (US$) dollar-denominated cash and
cash equivalents which amounted to $10.1million and $10.9 million, respectively (see Note 22).
In 2017, 2016 and 2015, unrealized foreign exchange gains attributable to foreign-currency
denominated cash and cash equivalents amounted toP
=0.1 million,P
=25.5 million andP
=20.8million,
respectively. In 2017, 2016 and 2015, realized foreign exchange gains amounted toP
=0.1 million,
=2.5 million and =
P
P2.0 million, respectively.

5. Receivables

Advances to related parties (see Note 16)
Accounts with contract operators (see Note 6)
Accrued interest (see Notes 4 and 16)
Accounts with partners (see Note 6)
Advances to officers and employees
Others

2017
P
=193,292,101
129,825,101
28,910,346
1,739,897
3,434,975
365,075
P
=357,567,495

2016
P
=165,809,601
128,941,642
23,243,954
2,891,931
1,325,861
10,696,048
P
=332,909,037

The receivables are generally collectible on demand. These are also non-interest bearing except for
advances to related parties (see Note 16).
Accounts with contract operators represent the excess of proceeds from crude oil liftings over the
amounts advanced by contract operators for the Group’s share in exploration, development and
production expenditures relating to SC-14.
Accrued interest is earned from advances to related parties, short-term investments and investment in
bonds.
The Group makes advances for the operating expenses of the consortiums wherein it is the operator.
The Group records this under the “accounts with partners” account which represent receivables from
these consortiums’ members.
Advances to officers and employees pertain to cash advances for the operations of the Group subject
to liquidation.

 # 



- 29 No impaired receivables were identified as at December 31, 2017 and 2016.
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Group has $2.9million and $2.6 million, respectively, in
foreign-currency denominated receivables (see Note 22).
In 2017, 2016 and 2015, unrealized and realized foreign exchange gains attributable toforeigncurrency denominated receivables amounted toP
=1.8million,P
=7.9 million andP
=5.5 million,
respectively.

6. Interest in Jointly Controlled Operations
The Group’s interest in the jointly controlled operations in the various SCs, and any assets and
liabilities incurred jointly with the other partners, as well as the related revenues and expenses of the
joint operation, which are included in the consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

Current assets:
Receivables (see Note 5):
Accounts with contract operators
Accounts with partners
Crude oil inventory
Noncurrent assets:
Property and equipment (see Note 7):
Wells, platforms, and other facilities
Accumulated depletion
Deferred oilexploration costs (see Note 10)
Current liability:
Accounts with partners (see Note 12)
Noncurrent liability:
Decommissioning liability (see Note 13)

Revenue:
Share in petroleum revenue
Other income:
Foreign exchange gains - net
Cost of petroleum operations:
Share in costs and operating
expenses (see Note 17)
Depletion (see Note 7)

2017

2016

P
=129,825,101
1,739,897
71,172,655
202,737,653

P
=128,941,642
2,891,931
54,689,641
186,523,214

1,447,087,460
(821,640,522)
625,446,938
1,043,525,798
1,668,972,736

1,365,416,511
(731,870,110)
633,546,401
1,028,284,179
1,661,830,580

(6,494,723)

(961,300)

(21,934,354)
(24,171,093)
=1,825,458,140
P
=1,841,044,573 P
2017

2016

2015

P
=388,201,800

P
=358,687,873

P
=535,636,607

2,445,936
390,647,736

7,455,479
366,143,352

5,442,988
541,079,595

291,193,355
89,770,412
380,963,767
P
=9,683,969

250,092,686
105,082,440
355,175,126
P
=10,968,226

292,735,785
113,653,320
406,389,105
P
=134,690,490
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7. Property and Equipment

December 31, 2017
Cost:
Beginning of year
Additions
Adjustment to capitalized cost of
decommissioning asset
End of year
Accumulated depletion and
depreciation:
Beginning of year
Depletion and depreciation
(see Notes 6 and 18)
End of year
Net book values

December 31, 2016
Cost:
Beginning of year
Additions
Retirement
Reclassification to deferred oil
exploration costs
End of year
Accumulated depletion and depreciation:
Beginning of year
Depletion and depreciation
(see Notes 6 and 18)
Retirement
End of year
Net book values

Wells, Platforms, and Other Facilities
SC-14 Block D,
Tara, West
SC-14 Block
Linapacan,
Verde and
A, B, B - 1,
Deepwater
C - 1 and C - 2
Subtotal
P
=402,774,451
9,934,228

P
=962,642,060 P
=1,365,416,511
70,077,357
80,011,585

Office
Condominium
Units and Transportation
Improvements
Equipment
P
=17,934,624
180,000

P
=1,825,100
12,062,000

Office
Furniture,
Fixtures and
Equipment

Total

P
=7,690,267 P
=1,392,866,502
56,728
92,310,313

–
412,708,679

1,659,364
1,034,378,781

1,659,364
1,447,087,460

–
18,114,624

–
13,887,100

–
7,746,995

1,659,364
1,486,836,179

12,285,641

719,584,469

731,870,110

11,099,243

1,787,247

7,412,751

752,169,351

–
12,285,641
P
=400,423,038

89,770,412
809,354,881
P
=225,023,900

89,770,412
821,640,522
P
=625,446,938

495,744
11,594,987
P
=6,519,637

2,224,727
4,011,974
P
=9,875,126

195,344
7,608,095
P
=138,900

92,686,227
844,855,578
P
=641,980,601

Wells, Platforms, and Other Facilities
SC-14 Block D,
Tara, West
Linapacan,
SC-14 Block
Verde and
A, B, B - 1,
Deepwater
C - 1 and C - 2
Subtotal

Office
Condominium
Units and
Improvements

Transportation
Equipment

=397,437,101
P
5,315,617
–

=
P922,225,511 P
=1,319,662,612
40,416,549
45,732,166
–
–

=17,934,624
P
–
–

=
P12,214,900
–
(10,389,800)

Office Furniture,
Fixtures and
Equipment

Total

=7,570,317 =
P
P1,357,382,453
119,950
45,852,116
–
(10,389,800)

21,733
402,774,451

–
962,642,060

21,733
1,365,416,511

–
17,934,624

–
1,825,100

–
7,690,267

21,733
1,392,866,502

12,285,641

614,502,029

626,787,670

10,603,499

10,406,767

7,092,678

654,890,614

–
–
12,285,641
=390,488,810
P

105,082,440
–
719,584,469
=243,057,591
P

105,082,440
–
731,870,110
=
P633,546,401

495,744
–
11,099,243
=6,835,381
P

1,770,280
(10,389,800)
1,787,247
=37,853
P

320,073
–
7,412,751
=277,516
P

107,668,537
(10,389,800)
752,169,351
=640,697,151
P

For SC-14 C1 Galoc, depletion rates used in 2017, 2016 and 2015 areP
=806.9 per barrel,P
=768.1 per
barrel and =
P705.0 per barrelrespectively.
For SC-14 B1 North Matinloc, depletion rates used in 2017, 2016 and 2015 are nil due to full
depletion of the capitalized costs of wells.
The depletion expense recognized amounted toP
=89.8 million,P
=105.1million andP
=113.7 million in
2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 6), while total depreciationexpense related to general
and administrative expenses amounted to P
=2.9 million, =
P2.6 million and P
=3.2 million in 2017, 2016
and 2015, respectively (see Note 18).
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Group continues to utilize fully depreciated property and
equipment with an aggregate acquisition cost of P
=16.8 million and P
=16.1 million, respectively.

8. Investments in Associates
The Group’s associates includePentaCapital Investment Corporation (PCIC),PentaCapital Holdings,
Inc. (PCHI), and Atlas Consolidated Mining and Development Corporation (ACMDC), companies
incorporated in the Philippines, where the Group holds 40.00%, 13.21%, and 0.93% ownership
interest, respectively. PCIC also has 29.54% ownership interest in PCHI, making the Group’s
effective ownership in PCHI at 25.03%.
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- 31 On December 18, 2015, the Company entered into a Joint Voting Agreement with Alakor
Corporation(Alakor), National Book Store, Inc. (NBS) and Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation
(APHC), collectively known as the Ramos Group, to jointly vote their shares in ACMDC in all
matters affecting their rights as stockholders effective January 1, 2015. The combined interest of the
parties to the agreement represents 43.41% interest in ACMDC. By virtue of this agreement,
significant influence in the associate is established.
The details of investments in associates carried under the equity method follow:

Acquisition costs
Accumulated equity in net earnings:
Beginning of year
Share in net income
Share in OCI of associates
Dividends
End of year

2017
P
=633,485,090

2016
P
=633,485,090

129,456,791
15,781,372
19,442,677
(13,302,992)
151,377,848
P
=784,862,938

93,387,066
14,182,107
27,887,618
(6,000,000)
129,456,791
P
=762,941,881

Following are the summarized financial information of ACMDC, PCIC and PCHIas at and for the
years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 (in thousands):

Total current
assets
Total noncurrent
assets
Total current
liabilities
Total noncurrent
liabilities

Revenue
Costs and
expenses
Total
comprehensive
income (loss)

ACMDC

2017
PCIC

PCHI

ACMDC

2016
PCIC

PCHI

P
= 5,443,457

P
= 509,806

P
= 368,059

=5,826,809
P

=200,493
P

=408,057
P

68,959,417

670,688

190,119

67,874,765

661,987

173,330

12,364,406

397,012

23,501

23,442,695

129,127

53,975

25,647,265

21,245

–

13,537,991

26,172

–

ACMDC
P
= 11,070,571

2017
PCIC
P
= 206,084

PCHI
P
= 85,900

ACMDC
=
P10,924,490

2016
PCIC
=141,697
P

PCHI
=153,052
P

ACMDC
=
P9,935,083

2015
PCIC
=217,622
P

PCHI
P
=133,391

10,096,189

98,518

41,753

10,385,324

82,563

30,121

10,741,405

122,122

115,507

(1,873,562)

80,054

22,187

240,660

54,988

88,906

32,591

69,326

14,397

The financial statements of the associates are prepared under the same reporting period as the Group.

9. AFS Financial Assets

Acquisition costs
Net unrealized loss on decline in value of AFS
financial assets

2017
P
=81,259,385

2016
P
=78,834,830

(30,285,162)
P
=50,974,223

(16,276,563)
P
=62,558,267

AFS financial assets represent equity instruments on investments in quoted shares carried at fair
market value as at the end of the reporting period.
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- 32 During the year the Group acquired an additional investment in the shares of Oriental Petroleum and
Minerals Corporation with a total carrying value of =
P2.6million as at December 31, 2017 after the
Group sold some of its newly acquired shares during the year for P
=0.4 millionand recognizing a gain
on sale of P
=0.1 million.
The following table illustrates the movement of the “Net unrealized loss on decline in value of AFS
financial assets” account in the equity section of the consolidated statements of financial position:

Beginning of year
Changes in fair value during the year, net of tax
End of year

2016
P
=24,267,539
(7,990,976)
P
=16,276,563

2017
P
=16,276,563
14,008,599
P
=30,285,162

10. Deferred Oil Exploration Costs
The full recovery of deferred oil exploration costs incurred in connection with the Group’s
participation in the acquisition and exploration of petroleum concessions is dependent upon the
discovery of oil in commercial quantities from the respective petroleum concessions and the success
of future development thereof.
The following table illustrates the movements in the deferred oil exploration costs account:

Beginning of year
Additions
Reclassification to property and equipment
End of year

2017
P
=1,028,284,179
15,241,619
–
P
=1,043,525,798

2016
P
=981,791,585
46,514,327
(21,733)
P
=1,028,284,179

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Grouphas allowance for impairment losses on deferred oil
exploration cost amounting toP
=0.2 million.
Under the SCs entered into with the Department of Energy (DOE) covering certain petroleum
contract areas in various locations in the Philippines, the participating oil companies (collectively
known as Contractors) are obliged to provide, at their sole risk, the services, technology and financing
necessary in the performance of their obligations under these contracts. The Contractors are also
obliged to spend specified amounts indicated in the contract in direct proportion to their work
obligations.
However, if the Contractors fail to comply with their work obligations, they shall pay the government
the amount they should have spent in direct proportion to their work obligations.
The Contractors have Operating Agreements among themselves which govern their rights and
obligations under these contracts.
The Contractors entered into several SCs with the Philippine Government, through the DOE, for the
exploration, development and exploitation of the contract areas situated mostly in offshore Palawan
where oil discoveries were made. The Group’s present petroleum revenues and production costs and
related expenses are from certain areas of SC-14, particularly Nido, Matinloc, North Matinloc and
Galoc.
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- 33 The aforementioned SCs provide for certain minimum work expenditure obligations and the drilling
of a specified number of wells and are covered by operating agreements which set forth the
participating interests, rights and obligations of the Contractor. The Group’s share in the jointly
controlled assets of the aforementioned SCs is included principally under the “Receivables,” “Crude
oil inventory,” “Property and equipment” and “Deferred oilexploration costs” accounts in the
consolidated statements of financial position.
The Group’s participating interests (in percentage) in the different SCs as at December 31, 2017 and
2016 are as follows:
Participating Interest
(in percentage)
2016
2017

Area
SC-6 (Northwest Palawan):
Block A (Octon)
Block B (Bonita)
SC-14 (Northwest Palawan):
Block A (Nido)
Block B (Matinloc)
Block B-1 (North Matinloc)
Block C-1 (Galoc)
Block C-2 (West Linapacan)
Block D (Retention Block)
Tara Block
Libro Block
SC-53 (Onshore Mindoro)
SC-74 (Linapacan)
SWAN Block (Northwest Palawan)
1
2

51.65000
21.87500

51.65000
21.87500

26.10600
41.60800
33.11100
7.21495
28.070001
33.75100
27.50000
27.50000
22.00000
25.00000
28.125002

26.10600
41.60800
33.11100
7.21495
28.070001
33.75100
27.50000
27.50000
22.00000
25.00000
32.975002

Farmout to Pitkin and RMA Limited (RMA) terminated by DOE; Interests reverted back to Filipino farmors
Ongoing negotiations with PNOC-EC.

Assignment of PPC’s participating interest to the Parent Company
On August 14, 2007, PPC assigned its participating interest, except participating interest in
SC-6 Block B and SC-14 Tara Block, to the Parent Company by executing a Deed of Assignment and
Assumption.
The details of the assigned participating interest (in percentage) are as follows:

Area
SC-6 Block A (Octon)
SC-14
Block B-1 (North Matinloc)
Block C-1 (Galoc)
Block C-2 (West Linapacan)

Participating
Interest
(in percentage)
1.10000

Carried Interest
(in percentage)
2.50000

15.26100
0.62050
2.48200

–
–
–
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- 34 In December 19, 2016, PPC assigned its remaining participating interests to the Parent Company by
creating a Deed of Assignment and Assumption. The details of the assigned participating interests are
as follows:

Area
SC-6 Block B (Bonita)
SC-14 Tara Block

Participating
Interest
(in percentage)
28.12500
22.50000

As at December 31, 2017, the approval of the transfer between PPC and the Parent Company is still
pending under DOE.
SC-6 BLOCK A (Octon)
On June 2009, the production term of SC 6A Block (Octon) was extended for a series of three 5-year
terms, subject to compliance with certain conditions such as yearly submission of work program and
budget and payment of technical assistance and training fund to the DOE. The term extension is
reckoned from March 1, 2009. Operatorship of the block remained with the Parent Company.
In April 2011, the SC 6A Block (Octon) Joint Venture negotiated and executed the farm-in of Pitkin
Petroleum Plc (Pitkin) which offered to do a three-phased work program involving new seismic data
acquisition and block evaluation for the initial phase and drilling of well/s during the subsequent
phases contingent on the results from the previous phases. The farm-in agreement was signed on
July 11, 2011 and approved by the DOE on December 6, 2011. With an earned interest of 70%,
Pitkin was appointed as the new operator.
In 2012, Pitkin planned for the 500 sq km 3D seismic data acquisition over the northern part of the
block where several prospects and leads have been identified by previous workers. Prominent
horizons of interest include the Galoc Clastic Unit, the Nido Limestone and the underlying Malajon
Conglomeratic Unit. The most part of 2013 was spent waiting for government approvals of the
seismic work which was eventually the Group carried out by contractor Seabird Exploration in
September 2013. The Vietnam-based Fairfield Limited was selected to do the processing which they
completed in April 2014 and results delivered to in September 2014.
In August 2014, Pitkin announced their decision to withdraw from their farm-in agreement and
consequently from the SC 6A Block (Octon)consortium and the Service Contract by the end of
December 2014. The remaining consortium members designated the Parent Company the new block
operator effective January 1, 2015. Consequently, a Deed of Assignment was executed by the
consortium to formalize the transfer of Pitkin’s interest back to the continuing partners.
To address some of the uncertainties post interpretation, the Group undertook quantitative
interpretation (QI) work which entails re-processing of a sizeable volume of 3D data block to
broadband quality and seismic inversion of the reprocessed data set. This QI program was approved
by the DOE as the 2016 work program for the SC. DownUnder Geosolutions (DUG) based in Kuala
Lumpur in Malaysia has been selected to undertake the reprocessing and QI work. DUG commenced
work in January 2016 and this continued on until completion of the seismic processing segment of the
work in July 2016. The QI work was completed in November 2016.
In February 2017, the DOE approved the proposed Work Program and Budget (WP&B) for 2017
which consisted primarily of data-re processing and a re-run of QI on the northern portion of the
block. The seismic re-processing segment was completed in September while the QI was still
continuing as at end-December 2017.
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SC-6 BLOCK B (Bonita)
Similar to the SC-6A Block A (Octon), the Grouphad a series of negotiations with the DOE for the
extension of the production term of SC-6B Block (Bonita) which expired on February 28, 2009. In
June 2009, the DOE granted the extension of the production term on similar terms and conditions as
that of the SC-6A Block (Octon) extension and likewise reckoned from March 1, 2009.
On September 10, 2010, the Peak Group composed of Peak Oil and Gas Philippines Ltd, Blade
Petroleum and Venturoil offered to conduct a defined work program on the block in exchange for
70% interest from the farming-out partners who will be carried free up to first oil. A farm-in
agreement was finalized and submitted to the DOE in February 2011. Under the terms of the FIA, the
parties have one (1) year to secure DOE approval. With the Peak Group unable to comply with the
farm-in and DOE requirement, the Group in December 2011 terminated the FIA and cancelled the
requested transfer. In July 2013, the DOE formally disapproved the transfer and the contract reverted
back to its original structure, with the Parent Company as operator.
A run-down of the various activities that were performed on the block follow. The in-house resource
and economic evaluation of the East Cadlao prospect, the Elephant prospect and the Bonita discovery
was completed in early 2014. The evaluation work identified the Elephant Prospect as an upside, as
the other two prospects were uneconomic to develop on a stand-alone basis. A satellite gravity study
carried out by contractor Cosine International in early 2015 complemented the results of the seismic
mapping and resource evaluation work. Results of the pre-stack time migration re-processing done
by contractor Western Geco in September 2015 significantly improved the quality of the seismic data
used. Further improvement of the data by additional re-processing is necessary though and this is
envisaged to be the major work activity for the next phase of the contract.
Notable changes in the contract’s structure took effect in the last couple of years. In August 2016, the
Group formally presented to the DOE a request for the amendment of SC-6B Block (Bonita) to
include the Cadlao Field as most of the partners can only support a forward program for SC-6B Block
(Bonita) with Cadlao Field appended to it. By end-December 2016, the request was pending with the
DOE.
In February 2017, Trans-Asia Petroleum Corporation (TAPET) served noticed of relinquishment of
its interest in SC-6B Block (Bonita). To address TAPET’s relinquishment, the remaining parties
worked on amending the SC-6B Block (Bonita) Joint Operating Agreement which was put aside
when the partners deemed it sufficient to accept and execute TAPET’s Notice of Relinquishment.
This resulted to the Parent Company gaining an additional 8.182% interest to its majority interest of
50% on the block. The DOE was notified in writing on September 2017 regarding the re-distribution
of TAPET’s interest where it remains pending as December 31, 2017.
During the first semester 2017, the Parent Company received an offer made by a potential Europeanbased Farminee. The Farminee offer is premised on the DOE approving the requested inclusion of
the Cadlao Field and its historical cost into SC-6B Block (Bonita). A farm-in agreement was
prepared and signed by the Farminee and the Joint Venture partners in September 2017. The
farminee submitted its proposed initial work plan and budget in support of the requested amendment
of SC-6B Block (Bonita). The indicative work program is geared towards reviving oil production
from the Cadlao field which included drilling of well(s), facilities construction and commissioning,
achieving “First Oil” before end of 2019 and the possible development of the East Cadlao prospect in
SC-6B Block (Bonita).
On March 14, 2018, the DOE formally approved the Joint Venture request, subject to the execution of
an Amendment to SC-6B Block (Bonita). As at March 21, 2018, the Parent Company and the Energy
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- 36 Resource Development Bureau of the DOE are finalizing the amendment document which basically
defines the geographic coordinates of SC-6B Block (Bonita)with the Cadlao PLC appended to it.
SC-14
The Nido, Matinloc and North Matiloc Fields in SC 14 continue modest production from some of the
remaining producing wells. In 2017, the three fields produced a total of 125,756 barrels which was
about 7% lower than the 2016 level, owing to the steady decline in the fields’ reserves. Pilipinas
Shell Petroleum Corporation remained as the sole buyer while service for crude shipment was
provided by Global Gas & Oil Carriers, Inc.
The Parent Company, as operator of the SC 14, conducted studies to re-assess the potential of the
Nido 1X-1 Field discovered by then operator Philippines Cities Service, Inc. way back in the early
1980s. In 2011- 2012, the Group took the initiative to map the Nido 1X-1 and the nearby Nido A
field using the re-processed seismic data provided by partner Nido Petroleum. The initial results
indicate that these fields contain volumes which can be developed at best using the existing facilities
of the Nido Field. In moving forward, the Group engaged the services of third party consultants,
RISC Operations Pty Ltd, reservoir expert consultant Frank Witteman, and third party auditors
Netherland, Sewell & Associates to look into the economics and development aspects of Nido 1X-1.
Owing to the prevailing weak market conditions, the Nido consortium decided to temporarily shelve
the project for the time being.
The Parent Company also conducted a short-term technical evaluation of the SC 14D Retention Block
aimed at providing a better understanding of its prospectivity and potential. The study was completed
in August 2015.
With the decreasing output from the fields, the Parent has shifted its focus from purely production
activities to planning and execution of the mandatory plug & abandonment of existing producing
wells and the eventual decommissioning of fixed offshore facilities. As early as 2012, the Parent
Company acting in behalf of the SC 14 Consortium, notified the DOE of its intention to turn over
control and ownership of the idle Pandan and Libro platforms to the Philippine Government in
accordance with provisions of SC 14. As at December 31, 2017, the DOE has yet to act on the notice.
The Parent Company contracted EDSL Consultants (EDSL) to do the plug and abandonment (P&A)
of the Libro and Pandan wells, as wells the Tara South well which under the operatorship of TAPET.
EDSL had prepared the design and costing for the actual P&A operations which they carried out from
April 19 to May 10, 2014 using the offshore supply vessel MEO Glory. The P&A of the Pandan well
in the Matinloc Block was successful while similar attempts on the Tara and Libro wells failed. The
SC 14 B-1 consortium resumed the program, starting with the ongoing refurbishment works on the
Libro platform as part of the preparations for the P&A of these wells.
A Task Force had been created to prepare the SC 14 P&A and Decommissioning Plan for the Nido,
Matinloc and North Matinloc wells and facilities. A Master Plan was prepared and submitted in
November 2017 by the Task Force to the different SC 14 consortia for consideration. The next task is
for a third party to review the prepared protocol and provide general costing for the eventual P&A
and decommissioning activities in these fields.
SC-14 C1 Galoc Block
Phase 2 Development
For the SC 14 C-1 Block (Galoc), discussion traces back to the period when operator Galoc
Production Company (GPC) drilled the Phase 2 development wells located in the Galoc Central Field
Area in 2013. Using the semi-submersible rig “Ocean Patriot”, GPC spudded Gaoloc 56-well on June
4, 2013and the Galoc-5 well six days later. Both wells were drilled using the efficient batch drilling
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- 37 method wherein similar hole sections in the 2 wells were completed before proceeding to subsequent
hole section(s). Galoc-6 well reached a final measured depth (MD) of 3,958.5 meters [2,211 meters
true vertical depth (TVD)]. Galoc-5 had a final depth of 4,497 meters MD (2,211.7 meters TVD).
Both wells drilled a combined total of 3,177 meters through horizontal reservoir sections within
which about 1,650 meters of net oil pay has been encountered.
The construction vessel “Skandi Skansen” arrived at the Galoc site on October 31, 2013 for the
subsea facilities installation/offshore construction and hook-up of Phase 1 and Phase 2 wells to
the newly re-furbished Floating Production and Storage Offloading (FPSO). The Galoc-5 well finally
commenced production on December 4th at an initial rate of 7,550 barrels of oil per day (bopd) while
the Galoc-6 was put on stream the following day at initially the same rate level. The achieved initial
rates from the clean-up flow tests were in line with the overall field forecast production rate of
12,000 bopd.
By the end of 2015, the Galoc field had already produced a cumulative total of 16.842 million barrels
of oil since it was first put on stream in October 2008. In that year, Nido Petroleum completed the
acquisition and formally took over the ownership and management of GPC from Otto Energy.
Earlier in September 2014, majority share of Nido Petroleum was bought by Thailand-based
Bangchak Petroleum.
Galoc Mid Area Exploration
During the Technical Committee Meeting (TCM)/Operating Committee Meeting (OCM) held in July
2015, GPC recommended the drilling of an appraisal well and an optional sidetrack well in the GalocMid region prior to drilling two Phase 3development wells. The Phase 3 pilot well drilling aims to
prove reservoir presence and quality, depth to reservoir, prove gas cap and confirm oil-water contact,
as well as provide crucial data to optimize the placement of the succeeding horizontal production
wells. During a TCM/OCM in November 2015, GPC firmed up the locations for the planned wells
based on their recent mapping. However, with the prevailing slump in crude prices, GPC elected to
delay the decision on the drilling pf the Galoc-7 well until the market conditions have improved.
In July 2016, GPC proposed to conduct an Extended Well Test (EWT) for the Galoc Phase 3
development should the Galoc-7 well appraisal drilling be successful. The EWT aims to obtain vital
reservoir data to establish recoverable reserves and to determine reservoir capability to produce
commercial oil from the Galoc Mid Area. The EWT was approved by the DOE which granted a 180day EWT or for a production of 10% of the mean recoverable reserves as certified by an independent
third party.
In another OCM in October 2016, the Galoc Consortium approved the Galoc appraisal and sidetrack
well program and budget. With the approval, preparations for the drilling, including contracting for
drilling rig, equipment and services have stepped up. GPC contracted the drillship DeepSea Metro I
owned by Golden Close Maritime Co, Ltd and managed by Odfjell Drilling.
GPC carried out their 2-well drilling campaign in late-March to early May using the drillship Deepsea
Metro I owned by Golden Close Maritime Co., Ltd. The first well, Galoc-7, was spudded on
March 31, 2017 and drilled though the reservoir objective which was found to contain hydrocarbons.
The well reached a final depth of 2,373 meters measured depth (MD). GPC followed up with Galoc7 ST, a sidetrack from Galoc-7, on April 19, 2017. The well likewise drilled through the prognosed
hydrocarbon-charged GCU before reaching a final depth of 2,569 meters MD. The two wells
encountered 7 to 12 meters of net sand, which is below the prognosed thickness.
After an extensive review of the well results and potential tie-back scenarios, the Joint Venture in
consideration of the prevailing low crude prices decided to temporarily suspend all activities related
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- 38 to a possible Phase III development and concentrate its efforts in optimizing oil production at the
Galoc Field from the current four production wells in order to sustain profitability and prolong the
field’s economic life.
The Galoc Field produced about 1.46 million barrels in 2017, about 22% lower than the total output
of 1.68 million barrels in 2016. The field attained the 20.0 million barrels milestone in January 2017,
surpassing the Nido Field as the country most productive oil field.
Projected production volume from the Galoc Field for 2018 is about 1.1 million barrels. GPC has
calendared 4 shipments of 330,000 barrels per cargo, with volumes based on the 2017 Gaffney, Cline
& Associates (CGA) report adjusted to take into consideration operational constraints, with 98%
process uptime.
SC-14 C-2 West Linapacan Block
Pitkin’s farm-in into SC 14C-2 West Linapacan Block was signed by the Joint Venture partners in
May 2008 and was submitted to the DOE in June 2008. The DOE approved the farm-in and the
transfer of 58.29075% participating interest and operatorship to Pitkin in September 2008. The farmin specifies that Pitkin will only share effectively in a certain portion of the historical costs (up to
$12.0 million in this case) and this share will only be assigned to Pitkin upon completion of Phase 3
or effectively “first oil”. Phase 1 of the contract was extended to June 30, 2009 with which Pitkin
completed a series of geological and geophysical (G&G) studies. The Group and the rest of the Joint
Venture members are carried in all of the G&G activities as well as in the drilling of a development
well up to first oil.
In early 2011, Pitkin completed negotiations with Resource Management Associates Pty Limited of
Australia (RMA) whose entry into the West Linapacan Joint Venture was formally approved by the
DOE in July 2011. Pitkin transferred 50% of its participating interest or 29.145375% on the block to
RMA. Pitkin remained as the block operator. As this developed, Pitkin contracted GCA, an
independent company, for third party probabilistic assessment of in-place volumes and reserves for
SC 14C-2 West Linapacan Block and the nearby West Linapacan B Field. GCA’s resource
assessment for the SC 14C-2 West Linapacan Blockgives a current recoverable reserves range of
9.6 mmbo, 16.5 mmbo and 21.0 mmbo, respectively from 1P, 2P and 3P estimation.
In December 2013, Pitkin ad RMA started rig pre-qualification, review and costing for the two
planned wells (WL A7 and WL A8). The operator was looking at possible development drilling
starting on the fourth quarter 2014.
Unfortunately, all of these preparations were overtaken by the precipitous drop in oil prices. As a
result, the programmed drilling was continuously delayed, prompting the Joint Venture to question
the readiness and financial capability of the operator to carry out the work program.
Despite several extensions granted by the Joint Venture and the DOE, well drilling did not
materialize. This prompted the farming-out partners to terminate the farm-in agreement in
January 2015. In a joint resolution, the consortium formally sought for the withdrawal of the DOE
approvals of the assignments to Pitkin and RMA. The contract reverted to the old participation
structure with the Group as the new block operator effective March 12, 2015. The re-assignment of
Pitkin’s and RMA’s interests back to the farming out partners was formalized by the DOE in August
2015.
As the new operator, the Parent Company carried out a 6-month technical and commercial audit of
the service contract aimed at reconstituting the joint ventures records and resources and better
planning of all forward activities for the block. As there were very little data secured from the
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- 39 previous operator RMA, the technical/commercial audit of the West Linapacan Service Contract was
suspended. In its stead, the Group proposed to do re-mapping of the West Linapacan “A” Field using
the 2014 PSDM seismic provided by DUG. This allowed continued geological and geophysical work
on the block which was inadvertently put on hold by the RMA impasse.
Alongside the seismic interpretation works, the Group reviewed several strategies to re-develop the
West Linapacan “A” field using the floating and subsea facilities of the Galoc Field. The concept
identified was to co-produce the West Linapacan oil with the Galoc oil via a 27 km sub-sea pipeline
into the FPSO facility of the Galoc Field. This concept, as envisaged, will not only hasten the redevelopment efforts of the field but will also drastically reduce the operating costs for the planned redevelopment of West Linapacan “A” and existing operations at the Galoc field.
To progress the validation of the re-development concept, the Group contracted RIS Advisory Pty
Ltd, , to do the Technical Review of the West Linapacan Field aimed to provide reservoir scenarios/
models documenting recoverable reserves and production forecasts which will serve as basis for field
development plans. This was carried out starting in August 2017 and completed in January 2018.
The results, however, indicate resource estimates being significantly lower than previous studies.
In the light of the lower than expected results on reserves of the technical review, the Parent
Company, under the proposed 2018 Work Program and Budget, will continue to conduct other
technical studies to identify and assess remaining, viable options to re-develop the West Linapacan
Field. The efforts will also include reviewing cost-effective options for the P&A of the old West
Linapacan wells.
SC-41
In early 2012, the Parent Company executed a Joint Application and Participation Agreement with
Philex Petroleum Corporation (Philex) to jointly participate in the bidding for Area 15, one of the
fifteen areas offered by the DOE under the 4th Philippine Energy Contracting Round (PECR4). The
parties agreed on a 60%-40% participation in favor of the Group. Area 15 covers the old SC 41 block
previously operated by Tap Oil Limited. The Parent Company, as the lead party, prepared the bid
application documents which it then submitted to the DOE on May 30, 2012. Back then, the bid of
the Parent Company/Philex was reportedly chosen based on the proposed work programs but for
some reason, the result of the bidding for Area 15 was not released by the DOE.
A new bidding round, the 5th Philippine Energy Contracting Round (PECR5), was launched by DOE
in May 2014. Nine new petroleum areas were offered for bidding which, unfortunately, did not
include the Area 15 - Sulu Sea block offered under PECR4. The exclusion of the Sulu Sea block as
one of the areas on offer under PECR5 was a decision of DOE as the area is within the contemplated
regions proposed to be covered by the Bangsamoro Basic Law. PXP Energy Philippines (formerly
Philex) and Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation, the latter having signed an earlier agreement
with the the Parent Company for the transfer of a portion of its interest in the joint bid, would have
likely participated in the PECR5 bidding if Area 15 was again offered.
The Parent Company will most likely participate and bid should the Sulu Sea area be offered in future
bidding rounds.
SC-53
Following the withdrawal by Laxmi Organic Industries Ltd. (Laxmi) in September 2007, the onshore
Mindoro Joint Venture executed a FIA with Pitkin acquiring entire participating interest of Laxmi
through a Deed of Assignment on March 19, 2008. The FIA and Deed of Assignment were approved
on June 11, 2008. For the Firsts and Second Sub-Phases, Pitkin committed to conduct seismic
acquisition, processing and interpretation, among others. In April 2009 in response to sub-phase
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- 40 extension request, the DOE merged the first 2 sub-phases into a new Sub-Phase 1 July 2005 to
March 2011 with seismic and one-well drilling commitment. The new Sub-Phase 2 ran from March
2011 to July 2012 with a commitment to drill 2 wells. The DOE likewise increased the Onshore
Mindoro Block area from 600,000 hectares to 734,000 hectares.
On July 4, 2011, the DOE approved the transfer of 35% participating interest to Resource
Management Associates (HK) Limited from Pitkin which remained as the block operator. Later in the
year, Pitkin recommended that the joint venture enter Sub-Phase 2. The Joint Venture committed to
drill Progreso-2, acquire airborne gravity survey and other field programs and studies, among others.
From July 2011 to July 2015, Pitkin carried out various activities in preparation for the drilling of
Progreso-2 well, including acquisition of related government permits, equipment and services bid
tenders, and getting approval of the drilling program and budget from the Joint Venture partners. For
some reasons, the target schedule for the well drilling has been moved to various dates.
In July 2015, the DOE revoked the approval of the Deed of Assignment between Pitkin and RMA and
the corresponding transfer of Pitkin's 35%interests to RMA. This came after RMA failed to present
categorical proof of financial capability to perform its obligations under the DOA. This development
again prevented any drilling to happen in 2015. This came about at the time Pitkin announced that
they are offering to sell its 70% PI on the block. In January 2016, Pitkin requested a further extension
on the submission of WP&B for 2016 in the light of the negotiations with prospective buyer
Mindoro-Palawan Oil & Gas, Inc. (MPOGI). This continued on and in April 2016, the parties
formally signed a Purchase and Sale Agreement and Deed of Assignment, transferring Pitkin’s 70%
interest which the DOE eventually approved in October 2016. The appointment of MPOGI as the
block operator was also approved.
During an OCM held in December 2016, the Joint Venture partners approved a revised work program
and budget reflecting the delayed spud of the Progreso-2 well to December 2017. MPOGI sought to
delay the start of drilling due to the late approval of the Pitkin interest transfer which had a significant
impact on the timing and costs of drilling preparations. This was set further back due to MPOGI’s
lack of manpower and technical expertise to prosecute the work commitments. They offer instead to
divest as much as 70% of their interests and the operatorship of the block to the partners. In the
ensuing exchange of communication and meetings, both the Group and MPOGI submitted their offers
and counter-offers. At the end of 2017, MPOGI has yet to provide the Joint Venture with a concrete
plan to carry-out the necessary works related to the JV’s commitments on the drilling of Progreso-2.
SC-74
Service Contract No. 74 was awarded in September 2013 following the successful joint bid of the
Group and Pitkin under PECR4. SC 74 covers the Linapacan A and Linapacan B fields discovered
by Philippines - Cities Service, Inc. in 1982. Pitkin, as operator, owned 70% interest and Group the
remaining 30%. Prior to the bid submission, the Group had initially agreed with PNOC-EC to
transfer 10% interest from the Group’s participating interests share in the contract. PNOC-EC’s share
was reduced to 5%, the limit set forth in a DOE circular governing the participation of the stateowned company in any service contract. A Deed of Assignment was prepared for this purpose.
On November 15, 2013, the partners agreed on the initial work program and budget covering years
2013 and 2014. A firm portion of the proposed work program consists of various G&G evaluation
and engineering studies. As outlined in the approved WP&B, Pitkin commenced the seismic reprocessing program, sourcing data from contractors Western Geco and EZ Data. Pitkin likewise
conducted and completed petrophysical analyses on the old Linapacan B-1 and Linapacan A-1A
wells. A geological fieldwork in Northwest Palawan was carried, and aimed to map and pre-Nido
sequences which are important in understanding the potential of the Linapacan Block.
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- 41 The DOE extended the contract's Sub-Phase 1 from February 13, 2015 to August 13, 2015 to allow
the re-processing and interpretation of the 1997 TQ3D data set other G&G works. Prior to the
extension, all other activities for Sub-Phase 1 have already been completed.
On June 3, 2015, PNOC-EC and the Group executed a Deed of Assignment effecting the transfer of
5% interest to PNOC-EC with the Group retaining 25% participating interest in the block. The
transfer was submitted and eventually approved by the DOE on October 23, 2015. Also in 2015, the
DOE approved Pitkin’s requested extension of Sub-Phase 1until February 2016 and the deadline to
extend the option to enter Sub-Phase 2 until April 2016. As this developed, Pitkin’s affiliate firm
Philex Petroleum Corporation had already initiated the transfer of Pitkin’s 70% interests to them.
Documents formalizing the transfer were submitted to the DOE in February 2016 which the
department approved a couple of months later. The transfer paved the way for PXP,Energy
Philippines Corporation (formerly Philex Petroleum) to assume operatorship of the block and to
design a block-wide 2D broadband seismic survey as part of its work commitments for Sub-Phase 2
which also included acquisition of marine gravity and magnetic data, as well as the continuing
evaluation of the Linapacan A and B fields.
Contractor CGG carried out the seismic data acquisition from late May to early June using its vessel
Binh Minh 2 and acquired for the SC 74 Joint Venture a total of 1,614.39 line-km of full fold
broadband seismic, 1,715 km of gravity and 1,623 km of magnetic data. The seismic data were
processed in CGG’s center in Singapore while the supplementary marine gravity and magnetic data
were processed by CGG Multi-Physics in Houston. Both processing works were completed in
December 2016.
The Parent Company and PNOC-EC both completed their respective share of work on the Linapacan
Evaluation Study. The Group was tasked to evaluate the Linapacan A and B structures using vintage
3D seismic data and to provide preliminary resource estimates for the two fields. PNOC-EC, on the
other hand, was tasked to undertake engineering studies, screening concepts and development plans to
determine the viability of the Linapacan discoveries. Preliminary results from these parallel studies
were presented during the partners meeting held in January 2017 and will complement the operator
PXP Energy’s ongoing interpretation of the broadband seismic data acquired by CGG in 2016.
Sub-Phase 2 was extended from August to December 2017 to give Philex ample time to complete the
magnetic, gravity and seismic interpretation. Based on the current interpretation, Philex has yet to
define any prospects and leads due to the complex geology of the area. To address this, Philex
requested for the extension until end-December 2017 to submit the 2018 work program formalizing
Joint Ventures entry to Sub-Phase 3 of the service contract. Philex proposed to conduct seismic
interpretation of the previously un-interpreted PSDM 3D data covering the Linapacan A and B fields,
a Linapacan engineering and economics study, and onshore Palawan geological field work as the firm
work. They also proposed to re-process and interpret the 2016 2D broadband seismic over the area as
contingent program.
SWAN Block
Despite the inclusion of the SWAN Block in the areas bid out by the government under the
first PECR, the consortium did not receive any notification from the DOE rescinding the GSEC
application. As there was no company that bid over the area, the consortium initiated the conversion
of the GSEC application into a full service contract application. However, the DOE granted instead
new SCs that both partially covered the area being applied for. PNOC-EC’s SC-57 and SC-58 were
awarded in September 2005 and January 2006, respectively.
From 2007 up to the time of writing, the Parent Company continued to wait for PNOC-EC agreeing
to a possible interest swap that will pave the way for the Group’s participation in any of the
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- 42 Deepwater blocks that covered the former SWAN Block. One option being considered is for the
Group getting 15% carried interest in each of SC 57 and SC58. In exchange, the Group will assign to
PNOC-EC 5% participating interest in SC-14 West Linapacan Block. PNOC-EC agreed in principle
to the proposal and asked for ample time to conduct due diligence to evaluate the merits of the
proposed interest swap. Later in 2012, PNOC-EC changed tack and instead expressed interest in
acquiring participation in the Nido 1X-1 project.
Efforts in finalizing an agreement with PNOC-EC, however, are hampered by Executive Order (EO)
556 issued by the Office of the President which limits PNOC-EC’s ability to transact through the
normal means of farmin/farmout mechanisms in acquiring or disposing of interests in Service
Contracts. PNOC-EC had been working for the repeal or amendment of the said EO.

11. Investment in Bonds
During the first quarter of 2012, the Group invested in a five (5)-year $2.0 million or P
=81.2 million
unquoted bond issued by Carmen Copper Corporation (CCC/the Issuer), a subsidiary of ACMDC, the
Group’s associate. The bond carries with it a 6.5% coupon rate per annum payable semi-annually in
arrears on March 21 and September 21 of each year which commenced on September 21, 2012.
In June 2015, the Group sold its investment in CCC bonds with carrying amount of $2.0 million or
P89.0 million (the carrying value as at December 31, 2014 amounted to P
=
=88.5 million) for
$2.0 million or P
=91.7 million. Interest income in relation to these bonds amounted to P
=2.9 million in
2015. This sale transaction resulted to a gain on sale of $0.1 million or P
=2.2 million.
Foreign exchange gains (losses) - net attributable to investment in bonds amounted to nil, nil
(P
=0.3 million) in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

12. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities
Accounts with partners (see Note 6)
Share-based liability
Withholding taxes
Others

2017
P
=74,576
6,494,723
4,344,718
1,253,848
953,578
P
=13,121,443

2016
P
=1,227,340
961,300
4,033,598
1,425,348
1,052,683
P
=8,700,269

Accrued liabilities include accrual for bonus, salaries and other employee benefits.
Accounts with partners represent payables arising from transactions of the consortium.
Share-based liability pertains to the share appreciation rights (SAR) plan.
On April 11, 2011, the Parent Company’s BOD approved the initial award of 2.0 billion rights to the
Parent Company’s qualified employees and directors in accordance with the SAR plan. The award
price is =
P0.0143, based on the average of the Parent Company’s share price for the period March 14,
2011 to April 8, 2011. The SARs are only redeemable from the Parent Company in cash. The fair
value of the SARs is measured at each reporting period using binomial option pricing model taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the instruments were granted. Maximum number
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- 43 of outstanding rights as of any given time should not exceed 4% of the outstanding common shares of
the Parent Company. The SARs shall become vested as follows: 35% upon award, 35% on first
anniversary of award and 30% on second anniversary of award.
On May 2, 2011, the initial award under the SAR plan was implemented. The period during which
the SAR may be exercised shall be specified by the compensation committee provided that no SAR
shall be exercisable after the expiration of ten (10) years from the date of award.
The following illustrates the movement of SARs as at December 31, 2017 and 2016:

Beginning of year
Forfeited during the year
End of year
Exercisable at December 31

2017
Number
Amount
876,500,000
P
=4,033,598
(60,000,000)
311,120
816,500,000
4,344,718
816,500,000
P
=4,344,718

2016
Number
Amount
916,100,000
P
=6,262,016
(39,600,000) (2,228,418)
876,500,000
4,033,598
876,500,000
P
=4,033,598

The following table lists the inputs to the binomial model used for the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016:

Dividend yield
Expected volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Expected life of SARs (in years)
Weighted average share price (in PHP)
Spot price (in PHP)

2017
0.000%
66.20%
4.49%
3.250
0.0143
0.0120

2016
2.083%
56.36%
3.99%
4.250
0.0143
0.0120

Withholding taxes are payable within 14 days after the close of the month.
Other payables mainly consist of accrued professional fees and are normally settled within 15 to 30
days.

13. Provision for Decommissioning Costs

Beginning of the year
Accretion of interest
Effect of translation adjustment
Effect of change in estimate

2017
P
=21,934,354
1,407,057
(829,682)
1,659,364
P
=24,171,093

2016
P
=21,037,756
363,025
533,573
–
P
=21,934,354

Beginning October 1, 2016, the Group makes full provision for the future cost of decommissioning
Galoc oil field on a discounted basis. The provision represents the present value of decommissioning
costs relating to Galoc oil field, which are expected to be incurred up to 2022. This provision has
been created based on the estimates and assumptions stated in the Revised Decommissioning Plan
and Budget of the Galoc Oil field approved by the DOE lastOctober 3, 2016. Assumptions, based on
the current economic environment, have been made which management believes, are reasonable basis
upon which to estimate the future liability.
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- 44 The final decommissioning costs are uncertain and cost estimates can vary in response to many
factors, including estimates of the extent and costs of decommissioning activities, technological
changes, regulatory changes, changes in inflation rates of 3.14% and 1.80% and changes in discount
rates of 4.75% and 4.81% as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. These uncertainties may
result in future actual expenditure differing from the amounts currently provided. Therefore,
significant estimates and assumptions are made in determining the provision for decommissioning.
As a result, there could be significant adjustments to the provision established, which could affect
future financial results.
The provision at the end of each reporting period represents management best estimate of the present
value of the future decommissioning cost required.These estimates are reviewed regularly to take into
account any material changes to the assumptions. However, actual decommissioning costs will
ultimately depend upon future market prices for the necessary decommissioning works required
which will reflect market conditions at the relevant time. Furthermore, the timing of
decommissioning is likely to depend on when the oil field ceases to produce at economically viable
rates. This, in turn, will depend upon future oil prices, which are inherently uncertain.
The Group expects to continue to produce oil from the Nido, Matinloc, North Matinlocuntil they
reach their maximum economic limits. The SC-14 Blocks A, B and B-1 Consortiums have set aside
contingency funds for any future costs that may be incurred in connection with the decommissioning
of these wells in accordance with good oilfield practice.
In relation to the decommissioning liability, the Group established a decommissioning fund
equivalent to its current contribution to settle its share in the decommissioning costs of Galoc oil
field. As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the fund has a balance of P
=5.6 million and P
=1.1 million,
respectively, which is recognized under “Other noncurrent assets”. Foreign exchange gain on
revaluation of the decommissioning fund was P
=0.2 million and nil in 2017 and 2016, respectively.

14. Equity
Capital Stock
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, capital stock consists of:
Number of Shares
Capital stock - =
P0.01 par value
Authorized 200 billion shares
Issued and subscribed
Subscription receivable

191,868,805,358
(17,533,428,605)
174,335,376,753

Amount

=1,918,688,053
P
(175,334,286)
=1,743,353,767
P

In 2006, the Group sold the shares received from VIMC through a stock broker for about
=42.3 million. The excess of the proceeds over the cost of the said shares amounting to P
P
=1.6 million
was recognized as “Paid-in capital from sale of treasury shares” in the equity section of the
consolidated statements of financial position.
On February 15, 2008, the Group filed its application for listing and trading of the offer shares in the
First Board of the PSE and the PSE approved the application on September 24, 2008.
On May 26, 2008, the Groupfiled a Registration Statement covering 38,373,761,071 offer shares at
=0.01 par value per share with the SEC in accordance with the provisions of the Securities Regulation
P
Code. The registration was approved by the SEC on September 18, 2008.
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- 45 On October 28, 2008, the Grouprequested for the deferment of the original offer period set from
November 3 to 28, 2008 to January 15 to February 11, 2009, and the amendment of the terms of the
stock rights offering to change the minimum initial payment for subscription from 50% upon
subscription, the balance upon call not later than December 31, 2009 to 25% upon subscription, 25%
after 60 days from the end of the offer period and the balance upon call not later than December 31,
2009. The PSE approved the same on October 29, 2008. A similar application for deferment of the
original offer period and amendment of the minimum initial subscription payment was filed with the
SEC. On November 6, 2008, the SEC approved the deferment of the offer period.
On April 13, 2009, the SEC had approved the Parent Company’s increase in authorized stock from
155,000,000,000 shares with par value of P
=0.01 each to 200,000,000,000 shares with par value of
=0.01 each
P
On December 17, 2014, the BOD approved that the 50% balance on subscriptions to the Parent
Company’s 2009 stock rights offering shall be called for payment by the BOD no later than
December 31, 2015, instead of December 31, 2014.
Retained Earnings
On October 21, 2015, the BOD approved the declaration of a 3.9053% cash dividend equivalent to
=0.00039053 per share or an aggregate of P
P
=74.9 million payable on December 1, 2015.
On September 21, 2016, the BOD approved the declaration of a 2.5% cash dividend equivalent to
P0.00025 per share or an aggregate of P
=
=48.0 million payable on November 2, 2016.
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Group has unpaid dividends amounting to P
=33.3 million and
=31.6 million, respectively.
P
In accordance with SRC Rule 68, as Amended (2011), Annex 68-C, the Parent Company’s retained
earnings available for dividend declaration amounted to P
=1,854.1 million as at December 31, 2017.

15. Earnings Per Share
Net income (loss)
Weighted average number of
common shares issued and
outstanding during the year
(see Note 14)
Basic/DilutedEarnings (Loss) Per
Share

2017
(P
=6,366,746)

2016
P
=29,119,304

2015
P
=114,710,464

191,868,805,358 191,868,805,358 191,868,805,358
(P
=0.0000)

P
=0.0002

P
=0.0006

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the equivalent potential common shares issued were the
subscriptions to common shares.
There were no dilutive shares as at December 31, 2017 and 2016.
There has been no other transactions involving common shares between the end of the financial
reporting period and the date of authorization of the consolidated financial statements.
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16. Related Party Transactions
Related party relationship exists when the party has the ability to control, directly or indirectly,
through one or more intermediaries, or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Such relationships also exist between and/or among entities which
are under common control with the reporting entity and its key management personnel, directors or
stockholders. In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relationships, and not merely to the legal form.
The Group, in the normal course of business, has transactions with related parties which principally
consist of loans and cash advances.
a. As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Group’s advances to related parties and the
corresponding interest income from these advances are as follows:

Related Party
Stockholder
Alakor

Under common
stockholders
Fil-Energy
Corporation

APHC

NBS

United Paragon
Mining Corporation

Total
Total

Volumes

Advances to
related parties
(see Note 5)

Accrued
interest
receivable
(see Note 5)

2017

P
=33,924,856

P
=187,482,500

P
=11,460,623

2016

=4,183,991
P

=160,000,000
P

=
P5,630,867

2017

–

4,753,762

16,166,436

2016

–

4,753,762

16,166,436

2017

–

–

–

2016

16,460,072

–

–

2017

–

–

–

2016

4,183,991

–

–

2017

–

1,055,839

–

2016

–

1,055,839

–

P
=193,292,101
=
P165,809,601

P
=27,627,059
=
P21,797,303

2017
2016

Terms

Condition

Collectibleon Unsecured, no
demand;3.58%
impairment
interest
Collectibleon Unsecured, no
demand;3.58%
impairment
interest
Collectible on
demand;noninterest bearing
Collectible on
demand;noninterest bearing
Collectible on
demand;noninterest bearing
Collectible on
demand;noninterest bearing
Collectible on
demand;noninterest bearing
Collectible on
demand;noninterest bearing
Collectible on
demand;noninterest bearing
Collectible on
demand;noninterest bearing

Unsecured, no
impairment
Unsecured, no
impairment
Unsecured, no
impairment
Unsecured, no
impairment
Unsecured, no
impairment
Unsecured, no
impairment
Unsecured, no
impairment
Unsecured, no
impairment

In July 2015, Alakor made full payment of its advances amounting to =
P173.4 million and the
accrued interest on this amounting to P
=46.1 million. Alakor subsequently borrowed
=160.0 million in August 2015 from the Group with an interest rate of 3.58%.
P
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- 47 In August 2017, Alakor borrowed P
=15.0 million from the Group also with an interest rate of
3.58% per annum, fixed until the full payment of loan. Also, on November 3, 2017, the Group
made an additional advance amounted to $0.3 million.
In 2017, 2016and 2015, foreign exchange gains (loss) attributable to foreign-currency
denominated related party transactions amounted to (P
=0.4 million), nil and P
=0.4 million,
respectively.
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, intercompany receivablesand payableseliminated during
consolidation amounted to P
=8.8 million and P
=8.8 million, respectively. This pertains to noninterest bearing advances made by the Parent Company to PPC, its wholly owned subsidiary
(see Notes 4 and 12).
b. The interest income earned by the Group from its advances to related parties follow:

Alakor
APHC

2017
P
=6,022,356
–
P
=6,022,356

Interest Income
2016
P
=5,823,467
–
P
=5,823,467

2015
P
=10,873,654
911,111
P
=11,784,765

The Company did not recognize provision for loans to related parties. This assessment is
undertaken each financial years 2017, 2016 and 2015.
c. The compensation of key management personnel are as follows:

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

2017
P
=17,437,262
5,841,332
P
=23,278,594

2016
P
=15,696,549
2,752,994
P
=18,449,543

2015
=
P16,438,165
2,752,994
=
P19,191,159

Key management personnel are those individual having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing, and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly, including any directors
(whether executive or otherwise) of the Group.

17. Share in Costs and Operating Expenses

Petroleum operations
Personnel costs

2017
P
=284,643,234
6,550,121
P
=291,193,355

2016
P
=240,244,079
9,848,607
P
=250,092,686

2015
P
=285,398,640
7,337,145
P
=292,735,785

Share in petroleum operations consist of the Group’s share in the production costs, lifting and
marketing fees, and other operating expenses of the SC-14 Nido, Matinloc, and North Matinloc and
SC14-C1 Galoc oil fields.
Personnel costs are the time charges of the exploration group for work done for the fields mentioned
above.
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18. General and Administrative Expenses

Personnel costs
Entertainment, amusement and
recreation
Transportation and travel
Outside services
Supplies
Depreciation (see Note 7)
Dues and subscriptions
Insurance
Utilities
Repairs and maintenance
Rent
Taxes and licenses
Advertising
Software licenses and maintenance fees
Others

2017
P
=30,544,186
6,535,469

2016
P
=31,042,018
3,654,156

2015
P
=40,166,342
3,703,717

5,386,637
4,517,033
3,039,693
2,915,815
1,976,389
1,841,680
1,489,601
512,089
374,091
244,749
170,401
105,198
72,002
P
=59,725,033

3,475,047
2,239,610
1,612,909
2,586,096
1,998,426
924,407
1,052,225
802,277
359,352
93,999
152,085
195,355
62,253
P
=50,250,215

3,263,832
1,875,425
1,610,233
3,224,462
2,501,942
1,358,143
1,310,649
1,161,886
374,895
357,342
156,319
1,488,912
564,374
=
P63,118,473

Personnel costs include salaries, allowances and employee benefits and facilities.

19. Retirement Benefit Liability
The Group has a funded non-contributory defined benefit retirement plan covering its regular
permanent employees. Retirement benefit expenses are based on each employee’s number of years of
service and final covered compensation.
Republic Act No. 7641 (“Retirement Pay Law”) an Act amending article 287 of Presidential Decree
No. 442 (“Labor Code of the Philippines”), requires a provision for retirement pay to qualified private
sector employees in the absence of any retirement plan in the entity, provided, however, that the
employee’s retirement benefits under any collective bargaining and other agreements shall not be less
than those provided under the law. The law does not require minimum funding of the plan.
The following table summarizes the details in the latest Actuarial Valuation Report as at
December 31, 2017.
Changes in defined benefit liability and fair value of plan assets in 2017 are as follows:

At January 1
Current service cost
Net interest
Retirement benefit expense (income)
charged to profit or loss
Benefits paid

Defined Benefit
Liability
P
= 82,081,851
3,641,938
3,334,733

Fair Value of
Plan Asset
(P
= 79,432,265)
–
(3,341,659)

6,976,671
–

(3,341,659)
–

Net Defined
BenefitLiability
P
= 2,649,586
3,641,938
(6,926)
3,635,012
–

Forward
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Defined Benefit
Liability
Actuarial changes arising from:
Experience adjustments
Financial assumptions
Demographic assumptions
Loss on plan assets (excluding
amount included in net interest)
Pension cost charged to OCI
At December 31

P
= 6,864,205
(8,956,124)
14,475
–
(2,077,444)
P
= 86,981,078

Fair Value of
Plan Asset

Net Defined
BenefitLiability

P
=–
–
–

P
= 6,864,205
(8,956,124)
14,475

624,003
624,003
(P
= 82,149,921)

624,003
(1,453,441)
P
= 4,831,157

Changes in defined benefit liability and fair value of plan assets in 2016 are as follows:

At January 1
Current service cost
Net interest
Retirement benefit expense (income)
charged to profit or loss
Benefits paid
Actuarial changes arising from:
Experience adjustments
Financial assumptions
Demographic assumptions
Loss on plan assets (excluding
amount included in net interest)
Pension cost charged to OCI
At December 31

Defined Benefit
Liability
=113,948,214
P
4,997,405
3,903,781
8,901,186
(29,839,500)
(9,629,633)
(1,462,136)
163,720
–
(10,928,049)
=82,081,851
P

Fair Value of Net Defined Benefit
Plan Asset
Liability
=6,994,917
P
(P
=106,953,297)
–
4,997,405
(3,577,818)
325,963
(3,577,818)
29,839,500
–
–
–
1,259,350
1,259,350
(P
=79,432,265)

5,323,368
–
(9,629,633)
(1,462,136)
163,720
1,259,350
(9,668,699)
=2,649,586
P

Retirement benefit expense is composed of current service cost which is shown as “Personnel costs”
under general and administrative expenses while net interest is shown under “Interest income”in the
consolidated statements of income:

Current service cost
Net interest

2017
P
=3,641,938
(6,926)
P
=3,635,012

2016
P
=4,997,405
325,963
P
=5,323,368

2015
P
=5,588,261
(908,984)
P
=4,679,277

The latest actuarial valuation of the plan is as at December 31, 2017. The principal actuarial
assumptions used to determine retirement benefits costs are as follows:

Discount rate
Investment yield
Salary increase

2017
5.44%
2.50%
3.00%

2016
5.07%
5.00%
5.00%

2015
4.66%
5.00%
5.00%

Assumptions regarding future mortality rate are based on the 2001 CSO Table - Generational
developed by the Society of Actuaries, which provides separate rates for males and females.
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- 50 The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of each
significant assumption on the defined retirement benefits liability as at the end of the reporting period,
assuming all other assumptions were held constant:

Discount rates
Salary increase rate

Increase
(decrease)
+1%
-1%

2017
P
=84,182,922
90,068,196

2016
P
=78,761,159
85,792,310

2015
P
=4,451,879
(5,028,210)

+1%
-1%

90,628,524
83,605,853

86,245,367
78,274,285

5,334,623
(4,818,550)

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as
follows:
Fixed income securities
Deposits in banks
Interest receivable
Others

2017
99.29%
0.00%
0.81%
(0.10%)
100.00%

2016
99.25%
0.00%
0.85%
(0.10%)
100.00%

2015
99.77%
0.23%
0.00%
(0.00%)
100.00%

The Group expects to contribute P
=5.6 million to the defined benefit pension plan in 2018.
Shown below is the maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments as of December 31, 2017:
Within the next twelve (12) months
Between two (2) and five (5) years
Between five (5) and ten (10) years
Between ten (10) and twenty (20) years
More than twenty (20) years
Total expected payments

P
=37,393,228
26,466,725
42,192,055
18,007,723
21,341,469
P
=145,401,200

The average duration of the defined retirement benefits liability as at December 31, 2017 and 2016
is8.17 and 11.7 years, respectively.

20. Income Taxes
a. The details of provision for current income tax are as follows:
MCIT
RCIT
Final taxes

2017
P
=931,256
–
1,384,149
P
=2,315,405

2016
P
=249,837
–
1,321,035
P
=1,570,872

2015
=
P–
19,009,965
1,345,183
P
=20,355,148
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- 51 b. The reconciliation of provision for income tax computed using the statutory income tax rate with
provision for (benefit from) income tax in the consolidated statements of income is as follows:
2016

2015

(P
=5,499,628)

P
=6,573,605

P
=42,540,356

(92,947,406)
88,736,344
(3,672,671)
1,384,149

(86,893,860)
75,586,022
(3,796,265)
1,321,035

(137,822,222)
124,524,516
(3,501,424)
1,345,183

2017
Provision for (benefit from) income
tax computedat the statutory
income tax rate
Add (deduct) tax effect of:
Nontaxable income
Nondeductible expenses
Income subjected to final tax
Final tax on interest income
Movement in unrecognized
deferred tax assets
Provision for (benefit from) income
tax

2,175

33,865
(P
=11,965,347)

(P
=7,207,288)

4,312
P
=27,090,721

c. Net deferred income tax assets represents the following:
Deferred income tax assets on:
Net operating loss carry-over (NOLCO)
Retirement benefits and unamortized
past service cost
Decommissioning liability
SAR expense
Excess of MCIT over RCIT
Provision for impairment losses on deferred oil
exploration costs
Unrealized foreign exchange loss
Deferred income tax liabilities on:
Unrealized foreign exchange gains
Decommissioning asset
Unearned crude oil lifting

2017

2016

P
=17,498,503

P
=12,111,564

9,395,540
6,842,352
1,290,464
1,181,093

11,486,512
6,420,235
1,556,059
249,837

197,624
1,614,272
38,019,848

197,624
187,285
32,209,116

(2,045,767)
(4,554,240)
(3,219,064)
(9,819,071)
P
=28,200,777

(9,278,973)
(5,980,042)
(2,594,046)
(17,853,061)
P
=14,356,055

The Group has NOLCO and recognized excess MCIT that can be claimed as deduction from
future taxable income and future income tax due as follows:
Year incurred
2016
2017
NOLCO
Beginning balance
Addition
Expiration
Application

Year of expiration
2019
2020

2017
P
=12,111,564
17,498,503
–
–
P
=29,610,067

NOLCO
P
=12,111,564
17,498,503
P
=29,610,067
2016
=
P–
12,111,564
–
–
P
=12,111,564
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SCHEDULE I
RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION
As of December 31, 2017
THE PHILODRILL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
8th Floor, Quad Alpha Centrum, 123 Pioneer St., Mandaluyong City

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, as adjusted to available for dividend
distribution, beginning
Unrealized foreign exchange gain - net except those attributable to cash and
cash equivalents
Unappropriated Retained Earnings, as adjusted to available for dividend
distribution, beginning

=
P1,856,226,206
4,869,881
1,861,096,087

Add: Net income actually earned/realized during the period
Net lossduring the period closed to Retained Earnings
Less:Non-actual/unrealized income net of tax
Share in net income of associate/joint venture
Unrealized foreign exchange gain - net (except those
attributable to cash and cash equivalents)
Unrealized actuarial gain
Fair value adjustment (mark-to-market gains)
Fair value adjustment of investment property resulting to gain
Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP – gain
Other unrealized gains or adjustments to the retained earnings as a
result of certain transactions accounted for under PFRS
Subtotal
Add:Non-actual losses
Depreciation on revaluation increment (after tax)
Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP – loss
Loss on fair value adjustment of investment property (after tax)
Subtotal
Net income actually earned during the period
Add (Less):
Dividend declarations during the period
Appropriations of retained earnings
Reversals of appropriations
Effects of prior period adjustments
Treasury shares
Subtotal
TOTAL RETAINED EARNINGS, END
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND

(P
=6,366,746)
11,046,960
1,306,516
1,017,409
(14,008,599)
–
–
–
(637,713)
–
–
–
–
(637,713)
–
–
–
–
–
(637,713)

(637,713)
=1,854,091,627
P

SCHEDULE II
THE PHILODRILL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
FINANCIAL RATIOS
PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Profitability Ratios:
Return on assets
Return on equity
Gross profit margin
Net profit margin
Liquidity Ratios:
Current ratio
Quick ratio
Financial Leverage Ratios:
Asset to equity ratio
Debt to equity ratio

2017

2016

(0.17%)
(0.18%)
1.86%
(4.72%)

0.80%
0.82%
0.98%
6.11%

22.78:1.00
21.21:1.00

27.58:1.00
26.22:1.00

1.02:1.00
0.02:1.00

1.02:1.00
0.02:1.00

SCHEDULE III
THE PHILODRILL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
MAP OF THE RELATIONSHIPS OF THE
COMPANIES WITHIN THE GROUP
PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2017
The Philodrill Corporation
(Parent Company; Reporting Company)

Philodrill Power
Corporation
(Subsidiary)

PentaCapital
Investment
Corporation
(Associate)

PentaCapital
Holdings, Inc.
(Associate)

Atlas
Consolidated
Mining and
Development
Corporation
(Associate)

SCHEDULE IV
THE PHILODRILL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
TABULAR SCHEDULE OF EFFECTIVE STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS UNDER THE PFRS
PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2017
List of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs) [which consist of PFRSs, Philippine
Accounting Standards (PASs) and Philippine Interpretations] and Philippine Interpretations
Committee (PIC) Q&As effective as atDecember 31, 2017:
Adopted

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements
Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative
characteristics

✔

PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary

✔

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
PFRS 1
(Revised)

PFRS 2

PFRS 3
(Revised)

First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards

✔

Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate

✔

Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters

✔

Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopters

✔

Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters

✔

Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans

✔

Share-based Payment

✔

Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

✔

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Sharebased Payment Transactions

✔

Business Combinations

✔
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Adopted

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

Insurance Contracts

✔

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial
Guarantee Contracts

✔

PFRS 5

Noncurrent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations

✔

PFRS 6

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral
Resources

✔

PFRS 7

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

✔

PFRS 4

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7:
Reclassification of Financial Assets

✔

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7:
Reclassification of Financial Assets - Effective Date
and Transition

✔

Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures
about Financial Instruments

✔

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of
Financial Assets

✔

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

✔

Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date
of PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

✔
✔

PFRS 8

Operating Segments

PFRS 9

Financial Instruments

Not early adopted

Amendments to PFRS 9: Mandatory Effective Date
of PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

Not early adopted

PFRS 10

Consolidated Financial Statements

✔

PFRS 11

Joint Arrangements

✔

PFRS 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

✔

PFRS 13

Fair Value Measurement

✔

PFRS 15

Revenue from Contract with Customers

Not early adopted

Philippine Accounting Standards
PAS 1
(Revised)

Presentation of Financial Statements

✔

Amendment to PAS 1: Capital Disclosures

✔

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable
Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on
Liquidation

✔
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Adopted

Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

✔

PAS 2

Inventories

✔

PAS 7

Statement of Cash Flows

✔

PAS 8

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors

✔

PAS 10

Events after the Reporting Period

✔

PAS 11

Construction Contracts

PAS 12

Income Taxes

✔

Amendment to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

✔

PAS 16

Property, Plant and Equipment

✔

PAS 17

Leases

✔

PAS 18

Revenue

✔

PAS 19

Employee Benefits

✔

Amendments to PAS 19: Actuarial Gains and
Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures

✔

PAS 19
(Amended)

Employee Benefits

✔

PAS 20

Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure
of Government Assistance

PAS 21

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

✔

✔
✔

Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation

✔

PAS 23
(Revised)

Borrowing Costs

✔

PAS 24
(Revised)

Related Party Disclosures

PAS 26

Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit
Plans

PAS 27

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

PAS 27
(Amended)

Separate Financial Statements

✔

PAS 28

Investments in Associates

✔

✔
✔
✔
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Adopted

PAS 28
(Amended)

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

PAS 29

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies

PAS 31

Interests in Joint Ventures

✔

PAS 32

Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation

✔

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

✔
✔

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable
Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on
Liquidation

✔

Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights
Issues

✔

Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

✔
✔

PAS 33

Earnings per Share

PAS 34

Interim Financial Reporting

PAS 36

Impairment of Assets

✔

PAS 37

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets

✔

PAS 38

Intangible Assets

PAS 39

Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement

✔

Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial
Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

✔

✔

✔

Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge
Accounting of Forecast Intragroup Transactions

✔

Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option

✔

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial
Guarantee Contracts

✔

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7:
Reclassification of Financial Assets

✔

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7:
Reclassification of Financial Assets - Effective Date
and Transition

✔

Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC–9
and PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives

✔

Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Items

✔
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Adopted

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

PAS 40

Investment Property

✔

PAS 41

Agriculture

✔

Philippine Interpretations
IFRIC 1

Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration
and Similar Liabilities

✔

IFRIC 2

Members' Share in Co-operative Entities and
Similar Instruments

✔

IFRIC 4

Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a
Lease

✔

IFRIC 5

Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning,
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation
Funds

✔

Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific
Market - Waste Electrical and Electronic
Equipment

✔

Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies

✔

Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

✔

Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9
and PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives

✔

IFRIC 10

Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

✔

IFRIC 11

PFRS 2- Group and Treasury Share Transactions

✔

IFRIC 12

Service Concession Arrangements

✔

IFRIC 13

Customer Loyalty Programmes

✔

IFRIC 14

The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum
Funding Requirements and their Interaction

✔

Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC14, Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement

✔

IFRIC 16

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

✔

IFRIC 17

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

✔

IFRIC 18

Transfers of Assets from Customers

✔

IFRIC 19

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity
Instruments

✔

IFRIC 6

IFRIC 7

IFRIC 9
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Adopted

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

IFRIC 20

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a
Surface Mine

IFRIC 21

Levies

SIC-7

Introduction of the Euro

✔

SIC-10

Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to
Operating Activities

✔

SIC-12

Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities

✔

Amendment to SIC - 12: Scope of SIC 12

✔

SIC-13

Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers

✔

SIC-15

Operating Leases - Incentives

✔

SIC-21

Income Taxes - Recovery of Revalued NonDepreciable Assets

✔

SIC-25

Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an
Entity or its Shareholders

✔

SIC-27

Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving
the Legal Form of a Lease

✔

SIC-29

Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures.

✔

SIC-31

Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving
Advertising Services

✔

SIC-32

Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs

✔

✔
✔

The Group has not early adopted any PFRS, PAS, and Philippine Interpretations effective
January 1, 2018 onwards.

SCHEDULE V - A
THE PHILODRILL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDUELES UNDER ANNEX 68-E
PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2017
SCHEDULE A. FINANCIAL ASSETS
Name of issuing entity and
association of each issue

Number of shares or
principal amounts of
bonds and notes

Amount shown in the
statements of financial
position

Income received
and accrued

Cash
Cash in banks and cash equivalents

N/A

P
=634,364,524

P
=13,195,103

Receivables
Advances to related parties
Account with contract operators
Accrued interest
Others

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

P
=193,292,101
P
=129,825,101
P
=28,910,346
P
=365,075

P
=33,649,415
=
P–
P
=28,910,346
=
P–

3,200,000
6,839,068,254
17

P
=2,496,000
P
=42,402,223
P
=3,400,000

=
P–
=
P–
=
P–

223,000,000

P
=2,676,000

=
P–

AFS Financial Assets
Vulcan Industrial and Mining
Company
United Paragon Mining Corporation
Camp John Hay Golf Club
Oriental Petroleum and Minerals
Corporation

SCHEDULE V - D
THE PHILODRILL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 68-E
PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2017
SCHEDULE D. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - OTHER ASSETS
Description

Beginning
balance

Additions
at cost

Charged to
cost and
expenses
-None-

Charged
to other
accounts

Other changes
additions
(deductions)

Ending
balance

SCHEDULE V - E
THE PHILODRILL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 68-E
PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2017
SCHEDULE E. LONG-TERM DEBT

Title of Issue and
type of obligation

Amount
authorized by:
Indenture

Amount shown under the
caption "Current Portion of
long-term borrowings" in
related balance sheet
-None-

Amount shown under
the caption "Long-term
borrowings- net of
current portion” in
related balance sheet

SCHEDULE V - F
THE PHILODRILL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 68-E
PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2017
SCHEDULE F. INDEBTEDNESS TO RELATED PARTIES
(LONG-TERM LOANS FROM RELATED COMPANIES)
Name of Related Party

Balance at beginning of period
- None -

Balance at end of period

SCHEDULE V - G
THE PHILODRILL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 68-E
PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2017
SCHEDULE G. GUARANTEES OF SECURITIES OF OTHER ISSUERS
Name of issuing entity of
securities guaranteed by
the company for which
this statement is filed

Title of issue
of each class
of securities
guaranteed

Total amount
guaranteed and
outstanding
- None -

Amount owed
by person for
which statement
is filed

Nature of guarantee

SCHEDULE V - H
THE PHILODRILL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 68-E
PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2017
SCHEDULE H. CAPITAL STOCK

Title of Issue
Common shares

Number of
shares
authorized
200,000,000,000

Number of
shares issued
and outstanding
as shown under
related financial
condition
caption
191,868,805,358

Number of
shares reserved
for option,
warrants,
conversions and
other rights

Affiliates

–

99,312,219,331

No of shares held by
Directors and
Officers
948,437,237

Others
1,024,136

